
 
 

 

 

CABINET 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 
The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, 

NN1 1DE. 
 

6:00 pm 
 

 
 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 

 
Councillor: David Palethorpe (Leader of the Council) 

Councillor: Michael Hill (Deputy Leader) 

Councillors: Alan Bottwood, Tim Hadland, Christopher Malpas, John Yates,  

 
Chief Executive David Kennedy 

 
 
If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722  
 



 
PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS 
 

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO TITLE 

Councillor D Palethorpe Leader 
 

Councillor M Hill Deputy Leader 
Community Engagement 

Councillor A Bottwood Finance 
 

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration and Enterprise 
 

Councillor C Malpas Housing 
 

Councillor J Yates Planning and Environment 
 

 

 
SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS 
Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda. 
 
Registration can be by: 
 
Telephone:  (01604) 837722 
   (Fax 01604 838729) 
 
In writing:  Democratic Services Manager 

The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE 
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer 
 

By e-mail to  democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk 
 
Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest. 
 
Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting’s agenda.  Such addresses will be for a maximum of three minutes unless the Chair exercises 
discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period referred to above 
so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak. 
 

KEY DECISIONS 
 � denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision: 
 
• Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 

making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;   

 

• Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and 

 

• For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition. 

 



 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held: 
 

in The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES   
 

2. MINUTES   

(Copy herewith)  
 

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES   
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   

None  
 

6. MINUTES OF WEST NORTHANTS JOINT STRATEGIC PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 31ST JANUARY 2011   

(Copy herewith)  
 

7. NORTHAMPTON SKATEPARK LOCATION   

Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration (Copy herewith)  
 

8. NORTHAMPTON WATERSIDE ENTERPRISE ZONE   

Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration (Copy herewith)  
 

9. LAND AND BUILDINGS AT CAMPBELL SQUARE - PROPERTY OWNERSHIP 
AND OCCUPATION   

� Report of Director of Planning and Regeneration (Copy herewith)  
 

10. FINANCE & PERFORMANCE - REPORT TO END OF JULY 2011   

� Report of Director of Finance and Support (Copy herewith)  
 

11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   

THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  



 

 SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 
 

 Exempted Under Schedule  
12A of L.Govt Act 1972 
Para No:- 



 
 

 
 



1 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 

 

Wednesday, 27 July 2011 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Palethorpe (Chairman); Councillors Hadland, Yates, Malpas, 

Bottwood . 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillor Hill.  
 

2. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting held on the 6th July were agreed and signed by the Chairman.  
 

3. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

Mr Neal addressed Cabinet on Item 6 – Confirmation of Proposed Article 4 Directions re 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HIMO’s). He stated that he had concerns that properties in 
his area were being purchased by landlords whose sole intentions would be to make as 
much money as possible through converting properties into HIMO’s with little regard for local 
residents. He commented that a number of HIMO’s had detrimental affects on the local area 
having witnessed an increase in Anti-Social Behaviour, increased parking problems and 
rubbish being left out in the street. Mr Neal commented that he was of the opinion that a 
number of HIMO landlords had little or no intention of enhancing the local area at a cost to 
local residents.  
 
Mrs McMurdie also addressed Cabinet on Item 6 - Confirmation of Proposed Article 4 
Directions re Houses in Multiple Occupation (HIMO’s). She concurred with the comments 
made by Mr Neal and further added that there was a strong case for the reinforcement of the 
directive as self regulation had not worked and the detrimental affect that HIMO’s had made 
should be noted. Without the directive any measures to resolve problems experienced had 
been drawn out and long winded. She also commented that with the increase in tuition fees, 
there would be less of a need for student housing (who often resided in HIMO’s) and there 
would be less of a demand for HIMO’s near Northampton University. 
 
Mrs Crake addressed Cabinet on Item 6 - Confirmation of Proposed Article 4 Directions re 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HIMO’s). She reported that she favoured the 
recommendations within the report and commented that if agreed it would be beneficial not 
only to Sunnyside residents but for Northampton as a whole. She expressed her concern at 
the expansion of HIMO’s close to the University and commented that residents wanted to 
maintain the pleasant character of the area. 
 
Mrs Barnes addressed Cabinet on Item 6 - Confirmation of Proposed Article 4 Directions re 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HIMO’s). She reported that she had lived in the area for 20 
years and that she had hoped to remain there for her senior years. However, since being 
confronted by HIMO’s she had seen an increase in noise, fighting and rubbish left out on the 
street, which had resulted in her contacting the Council on order to complain. She reported 
that the prospect of more HIMO’s in the area was very distressing and upsetting.  
 
Mr Shaw addressed Cabinet on Item 6 - Confirmation of Proposed Article 4 Directions re 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HIMO’s). He reported that he had spoken to one of the 
HIMO landlords who had informed him that the students in the property had been vetted. 

Agenda Item 2

Page1



2 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

However, he had experienced increased Anti-Social Behaviour, fights amongst students and 
rubbish left out on the street. He suggested that the Council produce a series of contact 
numbers for residents relating to problems incurred by HIMO’s and further commented that 
the cost of clearing up the excess rubbish should be imposed on the HIMO landlords and not 
other residents.  
 
Mr Birch addressed Cabinet on Item 7 – Community Centres – Management Organisation 
Appointments. He commented that he welcomed the report and its recommendations and 
reported that as a member of Alliston Garden Youth and Community Centre much care and 
consideration had been put into Community Centres. He expressed his pleasure at the 
prospect of working alongside the Council and local residents and commented that 
improvements would not be immediate and would take time but that there was a commitment 
to working in partnership and exploring more autonomous practices which would manage 
and delivered community services. 
 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None  
 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

None  
 

6. CONFIRMATION OF PROPOSED ARTICLE 4 DIRECTIONS RE HIMO'S 

Councillor Marriott welcomed the report and commented that the agreement of the 
recommendations would allow the Council to have greater control of the number of HIMO’s. 
It was noted that it was not just a student issue but the increase in population in the town had 
lead to greater demand for such housing. He explained that the change of use from use 
Class C3 Dwelling House to C4 Houses in Multiple Occupation would lead to areas that 
currently welcomed students to being overrun by them and an increase in hostility. He further 
suggested that the Council, for monitoring purposes, keep a permanent register of HIMO’s. 

Councillor Mennell thanked the residents who had attended the meeting to express their 
concerns and wanted to ensure that Cabinet were aware of the experiences of what 
residents close to HIMO’s had endured. She commented that a major problem was with 
private landlords who were not taking responsibility for their properties and was a problem 
that would get worse and which should be considered by the Council. She reported that the 
Council had a register for landlords and that provisions should be made to give guidance to 
Councillors and residents who are experiencing the negative affects of HIMO’s.  

Councillor Markham addressed Cabinet and commented that having heard the views of 
residents, the Council had a duty of care to its residents. She recognised that there was 
significant pressure on the housing stock but reported that HIMO’s did not always provide 
good quality housing neither inside nor out. She further commented that in relation to HIMO’s 
she had seen poor management of gardens and an increase in parking issues. She 
suggested that the Council adopt a local planning policy document under the Local 
Development Framework and commented that planning policy should provide a balance in 
order to prevent harm to residential areas.  

Councillor Yates, as the relevant Portfolio Holder, introduced the report and noted that there 
was a need to renew the Article 4 Direction as it was near to expiry, which would have an 
affect on 13 wards in the Borough. Having listened to the opinions and comments of 
residents and Councillors he stated that the reasons for the confirmation were obvious and 
there was a need for HIMO’s to be properly regulated, through the planning system and 
commented that there was a real need to renew the existing orders. 

Page2



3 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

 

Councillor Malpas commented that when examining the account of some of the HIMO 
landlords it was incongruous to the experiences voiced by the residents.  

The Chairman thanked the members of the public for their contributions and stated that the 
report was a way of looking forwards and anticipating any future problems that could arise. 
Referring to Councillor Markham’s comments with regards to planning policy, it was noted 
that the Director of Planning and Regeneration and the Director of Housing would work 
together in examining policy and a report would be bought back to Cabinet in early 2012. 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the ‘Immediate’ Article 4 Direction which removed permitted 
development rights for change of use from C3 to C4 for an area bound by 
Holly Lodge Road to the north of the area, the Borough boundary to the 
east, Boughton Green Road to the south (including properties fronting the 
Road on the southern side) and Harborough Road to the west (including 
properties fronting the Road on the western side) as shown on the attached 
plan at Appendix 1 of the report be confirmed. 

 
2. That the ‘Non-immediate’ Article 4 Direction which removed permitted 

development rights for change of use from C3 to C4 for the rest of the area 
comprising the remaining part of the central and northern parts of the 
Borough as shown on the attached plan at Appendix 2 of the report be 
confirmed 

 
  
 

7. COMMUNITY CENTRES - MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION APPOINTMENTS 

Councillor Mason addressed Cabinet and whilst supporting the report, she voiced a number 
of concerns with regards to Community Centres and questioned whether the Council would 
be able to take action in the future should the Community Centres experience any problems. 
She commented that the Council should ensure that local people are getting the correct 
opportunities and expressed the need for adequate backing and support being mindful of the 
current recession. She also requested support for the Spencer Dallington Community 
Centre, which had many dealings with the support of the older generation. 
 
Councillor Glynane spoke as the Chair of the Southern Quarter Development Group that 
looked after Far Cotton Recreational Centre. He congratulated officers who had been 
involved in the project and offered his full support, which he considered a step towards 
Localism. He reported that he had confidence in the success of Community Centres and that 
not only will they deliver a good service but would improve sustainability in the areas.  
He commented that Councillor Malpas had spoken of the Management Appointment 2 years 
ago and had referred to it as having been a cost cutting measure. 
 
Councillor Palethorpe, on behalf of the Portfolio Holder, thanked the officers involved. He 
expressed his wish to allay the fears that Councillor Mason had voiced and reassured her 
that the Council would provide organisational and financial support. He commented that 
people would be empowered to contribute towards their communities. He congratulated all 
organisations on their success and expressed his appreciation for the work that had been 
carried out and stated that the Council would continue to support and have a responsibility in 
supporting the Community Centres. 
 

Page3



4 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

The Chief Executive explained that the proposals would enable the transfer of power and 
opportunities back into the communities and placed emphasis on the development of 
relationships and support, which he considered to be extremely positive. He commented that 
there had been extensive dialogue with the Community Centres and was assured that the 
Centres would do themselves proud. 
 
Councillor Yates reported that he was glad to see that flexibility was being demonstrated with 
regards to the different needs of the Community Centres. Councillor Malpas, in response to 
comments made by Councillor Glynane, informed Cabinet that he had previously 
commented that he did not want Management Appointments to be a cost cutting measure 
but emphasised that he was predominantly concerned about community centres being left to 
stagnate and fall into disrepair.  
 

RESOLVED:  

1. That in principle the appointment of the following organisations to manage 
and deliver community services from the community centres indicated be 
approved: 

• Deafconnect, to manage Spencer Dallington community centre; 

• Community Spaces Northampton (CSN), to manage Bellinge, Briar 
Hill, Kingsthorpe, Rectory Farm, Southfields (Bob Purdey Centre), 
Standens Barn and Vernon Terrace community centres 

 

2. That authority be delegated to the Borough Solicitor to sign the leases and 
management agreements in accordance with the Framework (Appendix of 
the report) on the Council’s behalf.  

 

8. COMMISSIONING FROM THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR 

Councillor Beardsworth commented on the importance of the report and spoke of her 
concerns that the Commissioning from the Voluntary and Community Sector be funded 
correctly and that a high amount of resources be provided. 
 
Councillor Palethorpe, on behalf of the Portfolio Holder, explained that the report had been 
bought back form Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the work for which he thanked. He 
commented that funding needs and explained that those who were most in need would get 
the services they required. 
 
The Chief Executive reported that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had paved the 
foundations of the framework, which had focused on shared objectives. In developing the 
framework, there was strong demand to make it as democratic and transparent as possible 
with limited bureaucracy with a continued dialogue.  
 
The Chairman thanked the officers and the work carried out by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. He stated that the key to success would be the reduction of bureaucracy to allow 
focus to be placed into the energy into providing a service.  
 
Councillor Hadland commented that he hoped that the framework would reflect different 
sizes of the Voluntary and Community Sector and all of them would be listened to. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That recommendation 1 of the Overview and Scrutiny report but with the 
task of developing a draft commissioning framework such that it is 

Page4



5 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

refocused on promoting the use of grants as well as commissioning, and 
with an emphasis on developing a relationship through dialogue with local 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) providers to shape services such 
that they meet both the Council’s and VCS organisations’ objectives be 
agreed. 

2. That recommendation 2 of the Overview and Scrutiny report, to manage the 
process of change to new or revised arrangements but to involve both 
grants and commissioning, acknowledging that this may need to be 
introduced in stages be agreed. 

3. That recommendation 7 of the Overview and Scrutiny report, that in order to 
identify outcomes to be commissioned in a particular service area, the 
Council and the VCS should work together where appropriate to assess 
needs be agreed. 

4. That recommendations 3 to 6, 8 and 9 of the Overview and Scrutiny report 
be agreed.  

 

9. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2010-11 

Councillor Bottwood, as the relevant Portfolio Holder, submitted a report, which he 
explained, was the Treasury Management Outturn for the year ending 31 March 2011. It was 
noted that the Audit Committee had made no comments other than to congratulate officers 
on the treasury management performance. He reported that long term borrowing stood at 
£32 million against the affordable borrowing limit of £50 million. With regards to investments, 
it was noted that there had been high prescribed investment and noted that there was a 
potential to sharing services with other authorities in this area. It was further noted that 
£1,117K backdated interest on a refund from Her Majesty’s Revenues and Customs, on 
overpaid VAT in previous years had been received by the Council. 
 
The Director of Finance and Support commented that she would start to research the 
possibility of working with other Local Authorities in developing a shared service 
 
The Chairman reported that in the last 4 years, the Council’s Treasury Management had 
been a leader in its field and congratulated the finance department on their excellent work. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Council note the treasury management performance in 2010-11.  
 

10. DRAFT HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN 

Councillor Bottwood, as the relevant Portfolio Holder submitted a report, which identified the 
outturn position for the 2010/2011 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) subject to audit. He 
referred to Appendix 4 – Summary of HRA Earmarked Reserves 2010/11 and particularly 
welcomed the ’Supporting People Reserve’ of £500K. 

Councillor Malpas thanked the Director of Housing and the Director of Finance and Support 
with regards to the HRA balance. He expressed his appreciation at the £500K being 
earmarked into the ‘Supporting People Reserve’, which would provide a safety net for those 
most deserving.  

The Chairman thanked the Finance team for the report and noted that the Councils 
Reserves looked healthy. 

 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the outturn position for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) be noted. 

Page5



6 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

2. That the increase in the HRA Capital Programme Reserve of £3.6m to 
£12.86m and also, the setting up of a new HRA Self-financing Reserve of 
£2m and a new HRA Supporting People Reserve of £500k (as shown in 
Appendix 4 of the report) be noted.  

 

11. DRAFT CAPITAL OUTTURN 

Councillor Bottwood, as the relevant Portfolio Holder submitted a report on the Draft Capital 
Outturn 2010/11, subject to audit. He explained that the total outturn capital expenditure (for 
2010/11) was £20 million, with a Final Approved Budget of £34 million. He further reported 
that there was a Carry Forward of £12 million, but that the funding was fully committed but 
not spent, due to timing issues. 
 
The Chairman commented that the Capital Programme had always been about delivery and 
was glad to see that once again it had been well delivered. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the outturn position for the Council’s capital programme for 2010-11  

 
2. That the carry forward of unfinished capital schemes from 2010-11 into the 

2011-12 capital programme be approved.  
 

12. DRAFT GENERAL FUND OUTTURN 

Councillor Bottwood, as the relevant Portfolio Holder introduced the report and noted that the 
outturn position was subject to audit. He reported that there were positive variances and the 
ongoing savings being made had been reflected in the 2011/12 budget. 

The Chairman commented that the outturn position for the revenue General Fund was good 
news. He explained that it be noted that when reserves are spoken about, it doesn’t always 
equate to there being surplus amounts of cash. Whilst it may appear that there is funding 
available, it was necessary to remain frugal and aware of the current financial situation. He 
thanked the finance team for their work and paid tribute to the members of the team who had 
been involved. 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the outturn position for the revenue General Fund be noted 

2. That the net movement in Reserves of £3.1m, and the detailed movement 
in Earmarked Reserves shown in Appendix 4 of the report be noted.  

 

13. FINANCIAL MONITORING DASHBOARD TO THE END OF MAY 2011 

Councillor Bottwood, as the relevant Portfolio Holder submitted a report, requesting changes 
to the capital programme for 2011/12.   

Councillor Malpas, as the Portfolio Holder for Housing, spoke of the proposed reduction in 
the Decent Homes Programme for 2011-12, which would increase in future years. He further 
reported that money was being spent on Disabled Adaptations of Council Stock and up to 
400 houses were going to have heating replacement. It was explained that this would take 
customers out of fuel poverty and would specifically help people on the lowest incomes. 

The Chairman welcomed the report and congratulated the housing team on the proposed 
work and the planned heating replacements, which would ease fuel poverty for residents. 

The Director of Housing reported that the planned programme of work to deliver the Planned 
Heating Replacement would commence on Thursday 28th July 2011. 

Page6



7 
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 27 July 2011 

 

RESOLVED: 

That the following additions to the capital programme 2011-12 be approved 

 

Scheme Reference & 
Description  

2011-12 
£ 

Future 
Years 
£ 

Funding Source 

HRA 

2011-12/HRA23 
External Gas Supply 

Replacement 

100,000 0 Prudential Borrowing 

 
That the following variations to the capital programme 2011-12 be approved. 

 

Scheme Reference & 
Description 

2011-12 
£ 

Future 
Years 
£ 

Funding Source 

Housing Revenue Account 

2011-12/HRA01 V01 
Decent Homes 

(4,823,000) 4,395,000 Prudential Borrowing 

2011-12/HRA05 V01 
Disabled Adaptations 

(Council Stock) 

500,000 0 Prudential Borrowing 

2011-12/HRA17 V01 
Planned Heating 

Replacement 

1,400,000 0 Prudential Borrowing 

  
 

14. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

The Chair moved that the public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
on the grounds that there was likely to be disclosure to them of such categories of exempt 
information as defined by Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 as listed against 
such items of business by reference to the appropriate paragraph of Schedule 12A to such 
Act. 
 
The Motion was Carried.  
 

The meeting concluded at 19.18 
 
 

Page7



��
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

���������	
������	�����������
�������
��������������
�

��������������������������������� !����
�

�
�������"� ���������	��
	��������	� �
��	!"����������	���	�����	#�� $������
��	!"�

���������	��������%���������&�����'�(���&	�)�������������#��'��
�	��
�
�	�
�����
������	#���%��	���*��+���+������,�����&	����-��	���&	����
��	#
�����
	���.,�	����
��/�)����������/����������
�

� ��
�
�
� �

�#� 
��������$���
%������

/
�	��)�	������0��
�

�#� ��&����

/
�����������1��
�����������1��
���������������������������
��������2�.���(�	������)�	��
��	���������������(���
���
��	0���
�

�#� '���
�
������$���������

���������	� �����	� �����	��� �� ��	������ ����	���� ��� ����� 2� 3� ����� ��	�
������
�	�� �	��
��(�������� ������ ��	�� ��	������ ��� ��� 1�	� ��� �
�� ����������� 	������� ��� �
�� ��$��
��	�
��������������������������1�)
��
�
��)��������(�	0�
�
����������	� �
�	�
� �����	��� �� ��	������ ����	���� ��� ����� 2� 3� ����� ��	�
������
�	�� �	��
��(�������� ������ ��	�� ��	������ ��� ��� 1�	� ��� �
�� ����������� 	������� ��� �
�� ��$��
��	�
��������������������������1�)
��
�
��)��������(�	0�
�
��
��
�

(#� �
�������$�&�����)�

/
�	��)�	������0��
�

*#� �&%����
����
����+$�
�),�

'���	�4�������� ������� �
��� �
�� 	�,����� ��������	����	������ 
��� ����	��� �
�� �
���������1�
�������������� (�� �
�� �(���� ��� 	������ �1� �
�� ������������� ��� �
��5��	����� ��������	��
��	�����0����	�,�������
���(��������������
��	��	�������������
���,��)��		����������
������
�
������)�	��	�6��	��0������-�(���������	�������	����������	������������������	������
���
6������ %��	��� 7������8�� ��������� �
��� �������� ��� ����� ��	�
������
�	�� )��� ��� ��
����"� �
�	��)������ 	�������1�
����	���	��������������0��	�4�������� 	�1�		��� ���)
���
��
(����,���
���(�����
�������#����1��
����,���������1���	�
������5���0�9��)����	��������
���
��1	���	����	��)���������(�1�	����,�����������#�����0�/
����,���������1���	�
������
5����
����������������
�������	��������	�
������/�)������	�0�-��(����,����
����
��������
��	����	������)��������������1��������������)
��
����(��������������������������������
�
���������	�������1��
���	(�����(������ ��	�
��������	�
�����!��
���)�����(�����������
��		����)���	���������)
�	�0��	�4������������������ �
�������������������	���(��������
�
�� ������ ��	�� ��	������ 
�� )����� ��������� ��� �������� �������� �
��� ��� �
�� 1�	�
�������
����������������������0�
�
$�,��� &����	�� ������� �
��� 
�� )��� �
�� ��)� �
��	� �1� �
�� ���� ��	�
������
�	�� ��	��
���

Agenda Item 6

Page8



��
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

%����������0�/
���
���(���� ��,��,��� ��� �
��� 	������ 1�	� ����� ���	�� ����)��
��� ������ ��
��	#�	���)�� ��� 	�������1� �
��	� ����������� ����	���0�/
��%������������
�	��������	��� �
���
��1	���	����	���
�����(�������������(�1�	����,�����������#�����0�-���������
����
��������
��	�� ��	������ ���� 	��������� �
��� (��� �
��� �
�	�� )��� ��� ������� ��� ��� 
�)� �
��� )����� (��
��
��,��0� -�� ����	������ �
��� ��
�	� �(���� (������ ���
� ��� �
�� �-�� ���� 5��������� )�	��
�����������(���)�����
�,��	�1�		�����	������������
�)��
�����1	���	����	��)�����(��������
)��
0�
�
���������	���-����)���������������
���
������������)�	����	����������
���(���0�/
��������
��	����	������(�����	�������� ��� �
����������)���,�	����11�	���� ��� �
���	�������������	�
	�,������0�����������)�����(��
���)��
�������������)��������0��������
�����	������
�������� )��
� �
�� 	�����"� �1� �
��� ���� ���� ��
�	�� )������ ��� �
��� ��� �� �(���� ����������� ��
9������	� ���
�� (�� ��1�������� (�� ��,����	�� ���� ��
�	� ����	����0� /
�� �(���� ������� ���
����	���
����
��	�,�����)���
��	�0���
�

-#� ���������	
������	������.�&%�������������������
���)�

/
��-�����1��
����:���(���������	��	���
�������
���	�,���1�	��
���(����������1��
���	��
��(��������,�	������1� �
���������	�
������
�	����������	����	���������������
��� ��� �
��
	��	���1�	��
���������	����;�)��#��	�	������������	�����������	������)��
�'������������<�
���� �=� �1� �
�� /�)�� ���� �����	�� ���������  7����� $�,�������!�  5������!�  %��������!�
'��������������=0�%���	�	�������������
�����(�����	�������1��
��������������������������1�
�
�� ��������0� -�� 	�1�		��� ��� �	������	� ��� �	��	�
�� �0��� �0�� ���� �0�� �1� �
�� 	��	�� ����
������ �
��� �
�� �	�� ��(��������$	�1�� ���� ���� 1����� ����	��)��
� �
��'��� ��� �
�� ���
�� �1� �
��
*�,�	�����8�� ���������� ���	����� �'����(�������	�1����� �������������������,�	�(�����0� � 9������
���� ���� )
�	�� ��,�������� )����� ���� )����� ���� ��#�� ����� ���� )
�	�� ����� )����� (��
	�������0�/
���,�		������	�������)���>�����1	���	����	��������,�������?0�
�
/
��-�����1��
����:������������
����
����������	����	������)����
�������	���	����	�������
����1�	��
���	��0�9��)������������������������)��
�������0�9��	�,��������������,�����������������
����,�������
���)�������#������������11�	�����	���0�/
��	������
���(�����)��
����9����������
.�������;�	�����������<�)
��
�
�����������
��5��	�������������	����	������������@�������
'���������� �A� ������������� ��� 
��
���
�� ��
�	� 	������� ������0� /
�	�� 
��� (���� �����1������
�(���� 	������� ��� �
���� �������������� �
��� 
��� (���� 	��	���� ��� �
�� ������ ���������
���������� �,�	� �
�� 	�,����� ���	� ���� �
�� .11���	� 	������� ��� �
�� ������������� ��� �
��
5��	�������������	����	������1�	����%����;����1��
��	��	�0�/
��	��	��(�1�	���
��������
����������)����
���������������1������1��
���)�	#0�%�������1�����������1�	������
��5,�������
&����)�������������������=2��1��
���	����(��������$	�1�������
�������������
�����,���
���
�	�)�	���	��
�	����)�����(���,����(���1	����
����:8��)�(�����0�/
��������������������
���������������	�������
����
������������������
���	�,��������	�,����)�������������
%����;��0��
�
/
��-�����1� �
����:�	�1�		��� ��� �
���	����(��������$	�1���1� �
����������	����	������ �
���
)��� ������� ��� �
�� 	��	�� ��� %����;� �� ���� 
��
���
���� �
�� ��������� )��
��� ��0� /
��
��	����������
�������;�������
�������1��;����������������(���������(���	�����������
��������1�
�
�������������������(������)��
������������(���:	(���5;��������� �:5�!0�A���A��
�����
������� ��� (�� 	�,����� (�� ���2� )
��
� )��� �� �����1������ 	��������� ��� �
�� '��� 1���	�� �1�
2�����0��2�����B�(��)�	��������������(�����2���	������(	�������������(���0�%����;�C�
�1��
���	����(��������$	�1�����������
��9�1	���	����	��$���,�	���������
�������
���
���(����
��������1����)�����;�����,����������������)��
���	,����	�,���	�������	���	�������
�	�����0�
9����������������������������������������������
��������	�6��	�������1�	����
��:50�.�
�	�
#��� ���������� ��� �
�� �	�� ��(�������� $	�1�� ��������� �� ��������(������ %	������ ����
56��������� 9����� %���������0� 91� �
�� ������ ���������� )�	�� ������� ��� �	�,�� �
�� �	��
��(��������$	�1����
����;�)��#���������	���������������	�1�		�������(�,���)��������������
����<�D�(	��	�����������������������	�
0�/
������������������)������
����������	��
��
�������������	�������������
���(����#�������	�,�� �
�����������1�	���(����������� �
��

Page9



��
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

���	���	���1������0�
�
/
���
��	������������
����
��
������������1�)�	#�����	��#��������������
����������������
��� (�� 	���������0� /
�� �����	��� �;	������ (�� ���(�	�� �1� �
�� �(���� ��� 	������ �1�
��1	���	����	�� )�	�� �
�	��� (�� �
�� ������ ���������E� �
�� ������ ���������� ���	���� �
��
	������� �1� >��� ��1	���	����	��� ��� ��,�������?0� /
�� �
��	� ��#��)������� �
�� ���������
�����(�����������	�-����)���� ��� 	����������� �
����11������ ���������� �
����;���������� �
�������
�,�	�����)�����(��
���)��
��
���	����(��������$	�1�E��
��������������	���������
��������
��	�
������
�	��
�����
�������	�(�����
������������������)��
0�
�
���������	� ������ %���� 	������ ���� ���������	� �
	��� .,�	� ��������� >/
���
	����������������(�������������	����>%��
�	������
��-�����1� �
�����������������:���� ���
�������������)��
� �
���
��	��1� �
����������	�������������������������� �����	������FF0?0?�
/
������������)�����	���0�
�
9�����)�	����6���������� �
��-�����1� �
����:������������
���1�	� �
���(�������������������
*��������������)�����(��	����������(��	���������������
���	����(��������$	�1�����
���
�;����� ������� �
���	�����1� �
��������������0�%��� 	���������)�����
�,�� �
��	� 	��������
��#��)������������
�	�)��
������6���	�1�	��������(�	0�
�
���������	� '��
�	�� �
�	�
� �(��	,��� �
��� �
�� �	�� ��(�������� $	�1�� )��� �� ,�	�� ��11�	����
�������������
��5��	�������������	����	�������
���
���(�����(���
���������@0�/
���)���
��	����� ���� ��� �
�� ������� �1� �
�� '���� ���� �
�	�1�	�� ��� )��� ���� �����	������ (�� ��0� /
��

�����������������������������)� 	�1������� �
�� ����	��� ��������� �	�)�
� �1� �
�� ��)���
����,����������#�������������	�
������
�	�� ����
���������1� �
����		�����������������
�
��	��
���	��0������,�� ��)�	�����	������ ����������	�
������
�	��)������� 1�	�����0�/
��
����	����,��� �1� �
��� 
������� )��� ���� 	�,������ )����� (�� �
��� ����� )����� ���
�	� ��,�� ���
�,�	�	�)����������������	�)�����(��
�������0�-������������ �
��� �
�	�����	��� ���(��
��������������(���
���(������������)
�	���(�����
���11������1��
��7��������&�������		������
(�1�	����	�������E�7�����%��
�	������)�����������(���;���������	��������	����	������������
*	������	#������ ����C�
� �����	�� �����
���������� ���������� �
��� 7�����%��
�	������ �
���
��	�����
�����	����	���������
����������������������
��������
����
����)
��)�	����������
�
�������#���)�1��	��	����������������
��0�9�1	���	����	��)���,�	�����	����������
���	��
��(��������$	�1������ �
������� �������	�������)��0�-�� 	�1�		��� ��������	��� ���	�������1� �
��
��,�������� �1� &��#���� D������ ���� �
�� �11���� ���� �
�� ��1	���	����	�� �1� 4�����
�	��
��		���	�� ���� ��� �	������	�� �
�����#�-����� ��������� ��� ��	����1� 1�	�
�	� ����������� ������	�
��������0�
�
���������	� '��
�	�� �
�	�
� 	������ ���� ���������	� /���� ������ ��������� >/
��� ����
����������� ������ 	������� (�� ������ ��� ��������� �C�� �=� ���� ����� ��� 	���E� >%� 1���������
����	�(������ ��� ��	�,������� ��� �
��4�����
�	����		���	�  %A�=!� ���������� �
�����#�-�����
��������?� ���� �
��� ��� ����������� ������ B����1�������� (�� ������ ��� �
�� ����������� �������
�����1��������1�	��
�����������0�/
��	�����������������������B����1��������)�����(�����������
�
�� �;������� �	��	�
�� 	���	����� �	����	�� ��	�,������0�/
���;����)�	�����)����� ,�	��
(��)���� ���
� ������ B����1��������� (��� )����� ������������ ������ �
�� 1����)���E� � >D���������
����	�(������)���� (�� 	�6��	��� 1�	���
�	�
��
)��� ��1	���	����	�� ��	�,���������� ������1���� ���
�������GG������
	���
�����������	����	�������������0??�/
������������)�����	���0�
�
9�����)�	����6��������������	�����
�)���1	���	����	��	�B�����)�����(������1�	��
��-�����1�
��:� ���������� �
��� ��� )��� �	��� �
��� ������ ������ ��,��������� )����� ���� ����,�	� �
��
��1	���	����	��	�6��	����
�)�,�	���
����	����������������(��,��)��������)
���������
�	�1�	��
�
����1	���	����	��6������������)
���������
����1�	��;�������
����1	���	����	��	�6��	�������
�1� �
�� �
	����:58�� ��	�
� �1���	�
������ �
����� (�� ,��)������ ��)
���0� D�	�
�	��	��� �
��
9�1	���	����	�� ��	������ ���� ���� �� 
������ �1� 	�,������ �
��� �
����� (�� 	���� �������� �
��

������ �1� 
������� ����,�	�� ���� B�(�� ����,�	�0� 5,�	��
���� �
����� (�� ��� �
�� 	��
�� �	��	�

Page10



C�
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

��
�	)�������������	���������
���������(���	�����0���
�
/
���
��	���,��������
����(�	��1��
����������������������������	���#��������������1�	�
����	�����������
���	�����(��������$	�1����������	����	�����0�
�
���������	�����&����6��	�����
����	��������	����(��)����
�������������1�A������
�����
���� B�(� �	������� �1� ����� �2����0� -�� ����� ���������� ���� �
�� ������������ �1� �
��
��	�
������ ��	�
� �:5� )��
� .,�	������ ���� B�������� ������� ��� �
�� '����� �������
'�����(���0�-��
�����
����
�	��)�����(��(��
������6�������
����������B�(�0�/
��-�����1�
��:� ���������� �
��� ��������� 	�B�������� 	�������� �� �2H� ���	����� ��� �
�� ���(�	�� �1�
����������(��)����<2�����=@��,�	� �
����;�� 1�)����	������ �
�	�1�	�������������� B�(��
)����� (�� 	�6��	��0� ������������ )��� ��� ������ �
��� ���������	�� ��������� $���������
 ��$�!�)����������������	�����������)�����	�����
����
����������������
�����(���,�����0�
�
���������	� ����������#� ���������� �
��� �
�� 	�,������ �1� B�(��)��� �	������ ����)��������
��	�
�������4�����-���
��:5�������������1�	�,�����������6�������
���������������
����
����
����	��0�
�
���������	� �
	��� .,�	� �(��	,��� �
��� ����� 6������� 
������� ���� B�(�� )�	�� #��� ��� �
��
��,�������� �1� (��
� $�,���	�� ���� &	��#���0� -�� ����� ��
������� �
�� ���	������ �1�
	���������&�	���
�-��������$�,���	�������	����	#��)
��
�)�����	�������������������
���	��
��(��������$	�1�0��
�
���������	� ������ %���� ���������� �
��� �
�� ���	���� �
�� ����� 1�	� �
�� ��	������ ����
	�6������� �
��� �1� �
�� �	#� ���� 	���� 	������ ��� ��	�
������� 4����� -���
� )��� ����
	�������� )��
� �
��� �
�� ����� (�� 	�������� ��� �(���� ���� ����0� 9�� )��� ������ �
��� �1� �
��
��(������)������
�,�����	#�����	�����������
����
����
�����(���������	�6��	�����0�
�
���������	�������%����	�������������������	��
	���.,�	���������E�
�
>�0�/
���������1�$9'D/�(��	��������������������
��>��(�������?���������	����	�����0�
�

�0��/
������	�������1��
��$�,���	����	�
�5�����:5���������C=��1��
���	����(��������$	�1��
�	��	�
���0�2�(������������)��
��
��1����)����)�	����E�

�������������������>9����������������
����
�	�����������	����	������(��)�����
������������	������
����������������
��,��������1���	��������
������0�%���;�����,���	����1���	����	���
*	�����������	����������
������������������������
����,���������������
	���1�	����
������	�������0�9��)����	�,���������1�	������������	�������
��,������
�������1���,������������
���������������,��)��1	�����	���������)����
������
	�������
�����������1�&�	���
�-���������
�������%���������������0?�

�0��/
������	�������1���������<����	����������	�
������4�����-���
��:5�������������1�
�
���	����(��������$	�1����	��	�
���0A2�(������������(���
��1����)���E�

����������������������>/
��������������;����������
��)������������������������1�	����	#�����	����
���������	���1��
���	����	����	������)
��
�	�,�����1�	��	#�����	����������
�	������
����)�� �������A!0?�

� C0��/
������	�������1��
����:�	����������I���������@��������==��1�%����;����
��
	�������1�	�	�B��������
����������
������;�����(��������	������B�(����(�	������������
�
�������#��	�1�	����������
�	���������������������(�����������������"��
��
1����)�������(������������
����:�	������E�

����������������������>9������������
�	����������	���
����
�������������������)����	��������	�����������
����
���;�������(�����1�	���1���	�
����������)����������
�	�1�	��	�����������

Page11



A�
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

��������(���1�	���1���,�������0�%�����������������
������������)��������	����
��,���������
���)�����(��(����	������������$�,���	��������	�
�����������

������
��������������)�����(��
�	�1�����������1�	��
��	�	�����	�����0?�

/
�������������)�	����	���0�

���������	�'�(���&	�)�������������
���
���������)��
��
���	����(��������$	�1�������
���
�
�����	���������������1	��������#��(����,����	�0�-��)���������������)��
��
��	�������
1�	���	#�����'���������
�������1�	����������
�1������	����	������0�9��	�������1��
��
�����������������	�������1��
��������,���������1���	�
������5����
����#���)
���
)�����11�	�����(�����
�����	�����0�/
��-�����1��
����:������������
����
�����	������
	�6��	����
�����1	���	����	��)���������������
�����1���,�������������
�������	���������
����(��������������	���)�	���	��������11�	�������C�����	�����0�

���������	�%��	��*��+���+������,�����;	�����������	������	������������������=����@�
���������1��
���	����(��������$	�1�����	�������1��
���;�������	����	��������#����������
�
��%CA�B��������������	�
�����������������������A��1��
����0�/
��	����������(�����
�
���������1�
��������	(������
����B���������)�����)�	�����
����������������
��6��	����
�
���11������������,�	��������
����
�������������(�����	������,�
���������	�����������
	����	�������
���;�������	�������)�	#������
�������1�	��������	����
����������
����������
	�������;������������������0�-��������������
����(�����	����	�������	���������)�	��
����#�������	����,���
�����������������
����(����������1�	�����������)������������1���	��(��
�,����(��0�

/
���������/	����	�������.11���	������������
���������,���������	��������)�
�	����	�������	����	��������
����
��	�,�����5��	�������������	����	������
���
	�����������
������	�������1��
��%CA������	�
�����0�/
���	����(��������$	�1��	�������
�	�����
����	����	���������	���,�����(����
�	��)������������������������	������������
�
�1������	����	��������)���1	����
����	0�-���������
������(��������	�����
�	��)�	����������
��	�������������	�������)�	����(�������1	���	����	���
���)�����1�	�
�	�	��������������	����
���������
�1�0�/
��-�����1��
����:���������
����
�����������������
�������	��#���
�;�����,��)�	#�����	����	�������������0�$�,����	��)�����(��	�6��	������������
�������0�
������������������������������	���)�	���������������
���	����(��������$	�1�0�/
��$	�1�������
	�1��������
��	�6��	��������1��
���������5���������.11���	����	�������1���
����0�

���������	���	�����	#�������������
�������
���	�
�������������
�����	�����
����
����:�
�
�����	��	���
����	����(��������$	�1�����	�������
��	�,�����5��	�������������	��
��	�������
���
���(������������(��0�/
���	����(��������$	�1��	�1�������������1��
��
����������
���
���(���������(���
���(���0�����
���	�
�������������)���	�6��	������
	�,����2��C�������1��@�@�����	�����������	�
������
�	�������)
���0��
��(����,����
���
�
�����	������������(��������	�������(��$���	��������	�1�����������������0���)��		����������
)�����(������������������
����	����1��
��7��������&���"��
�	��)�����(�����������	����������
����
(��	���������������������	���0�����
���	�
�����)����������������������"����
��������
�
�	�������	�����)��
���������
(��	�������������	������)�������������(����,���������
�)��
���
)�����)�	#�����
��1���	�0�%����	������
�����	������������������
��	�����0��
�����	����
�
���	����(��������$	�1��)
��
��
��(����,���)�����	��	�(�����
����
��5��	�������������	��
��	������
�)�,�	��
��1�����
����
����	����������������(������	�	����	�������1�B�(�0��
���������	����	#��	�1�		�����������AA��1��
���	����(��������$	�1�������������
����
��
	�������1�	�/�)�����	�)�	�����������9�1	���	����	�����E��
��%A�(������������������(���
�	����	������������	���)�	��,��������	��������	���������0�%�1�	�������������)�������������
����	���
����
����1	���	����	��)�����(��	�,������
�����1��
��
���������,�����������,��)�
�1��
����)�)�	��	�,�������1�
����������(�	�0�

/
��-�����1��
����:���������
�������(�����������������1������
�����	�����(��������������1�	�
��������������)�����		�����
	���
�����
���	����(��������$	�1�0�%����
���:5��
���	���	��
������������������������0�9���)�����������	�
�)��
����		�������������	���������)�����

Page12



2�
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

��,������������
����	����������������(��1��;�(��0�/
�	��)��������1�	���	��B�(�����(��
�	���������������	�,�	����������)�	�����	�����0�:�������������������������	�������	�	�����
������������������0�9��)�����	�����
������)������	��������	����,���
��/�)�����	�/�)��
����	�����������������0�

���������	���
��/�)��������������
���
�����	�����
���	����(��������$	�1��)
��
�1�	��
��
1�	��������(	���
�������
�	��
���������1��������	�
������
�	�0�/
��5��	�������������	��
��	������
���(���������)��)
�	�����
���	����(��������$	�1��)���(����������������
��	�,������(�	�0�9��	�,��������
�����������$�,����	�����	�,�����
��	�6��	���
��1	���	����	���
�����1����������	��������(������	�����0�9��	�,���������������	���������0�
-��(����,����
������)�������,�	����8������	�����������	���
����,���������1���	�
������
�����������	�,���
���������/�)�0�/
����$��)���������������
����	�����0�/
�	��)�	��
������
���������1�	��
��	�	����	�����������������,�	�������&	��#��������/�)�����	0�/
��
��	������	�	���������
��1�	��������������������@@<�����
��
�����
����
��7��������&����
)�����������#�������	��(��#)�	��0�-���	������������	��������������)��
��
��	�����0�

���������	����
������	#�������������
����
����	������	�,�����������1�	��
����������(���
��,���������1��	(�������	�	����	���0�-�����	�����
��	�������������������
��	��	�0�

���������	�'��
�	���
�	�
������������
����
���	����(��������$	�1��	�����������
��
���	�������1�/�)������	���������������
���������
��	�����	�������1��
��0�
��	�
������&�	���
���������
�����	�������	������/�)������	��%	���%����������0�
�������1���/�)���)�	��B������(���
�����������1��
��	�/�)������	��0�

���������	�&	����-��	���������
����������1�)�	#��
���
�����#������������	�)������
�	��
��
5,�������&���0�5��
��1��
��$���	�������������
��������1����������������������
���	��
��(��������$	�1��	�	����������(�������1�	)�	���1����)�����	���0�9��)����������(����
)��������������	��������
��1�	��	�5��	�������������	����	�����0�-���(��	,����
����
��
	�,����������������<�����C<��1��
���	����(��������$	�1�����	�������1����������
���������
	���)�(������	���)�	�����	���������)���������
��	�,������1�	��
��	���,����1�1����������
�
������
�����������	���	���0�-��(����,����
����
����	������
���(������1�	����(���(����
��������������(���0�

���������	�/����������	�1�		����������������������	���	�����
���������������	������
��
�����#�������������,��������
��5����	��$���	�����1���	�
�����0�-����#��)��������
���
�����#���
���(���������(����
�������������
���(�������������
������������
��(����
��1�	��������
���
���(�����,����(��0�/
�����������������������������
�������������������
�)�������#���������
��(��B������(���
�����������������
��1���	�0�/
��������,����1�
��	�
������5����
���(���������,�	���������������6������0�5�������
���(�������������)��
�
��	������
�����������������������
���������)
��
�����
���
�������������������������1�
�
����������
���)�����������)�	��������,�	�������
���(���������	���0�/
�	��
���(����
	�(�����)��
��
����������1��
��
�������
�����,�����
������	������
���
���(�������������
������	����1����������������
��������
�������	���,�	����	���)��
�
����������������,���
����*�	����0�D�	�
�	��	����
��5����	��$���	����
���(����(���������������������
��	�
������	��
�	��
���(�����������������(�����#��������0�/
�	��
���(��������,�	�	��������
����������
�������)
�	������)����)������������
�������;���
��������	���
�)���
�����������(�������������(��0�.���
�������,���������
�	��
���(�������������;��1���
������
������������
��	�,�������1�������	��������	�������
��	�,�������1���������������0�
%��
���
��
����	�)����
��������������1��	����	���
���	����(��������$	�1��	�����������
��
���������1�	��(�����	����	���������������)��#���0�/
����	������	�	���������������
������
���������
���(����	������������������1����������	��������E����	�1��������
�����������(����
�;������	�0���	�
������&�	���
���������
���������	�������
�������	�(����)��
�
�	�;��������=�����������������
�������)�����������0�9������������
�	��)�	���
����)
��
��		�������
�	������������������
���)��������#���
��	��)��
���0�/
��A���A��
��������(��
	�,�����(���
����	�������������������)�	�����	������(����1���	�
������)����������1���
����,�	�����)������������(���
������)������	�)0�/
����	����������������(��1��;�(�������
������

Page13



<�
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

������(��	�,��)����,�	�����0�9��)������11����,������,�	����	�����1�1�1��������	������
�(B����,����,�	��������	��	�����1��������	
���������C�����	���)�	��������������������
���
�
���)���������(������	0���)�:4������	�������(�����
�����)�	���AH�������	��
����
��
5�	�����������	�������
���,�	���������1��
��D�	���/���	�&���	�)�����)��<0�-��(����,���
�
����1�������������)�	�����)�	#������
�	��
����
���
������	�,�����
���������	������������
1���	������	��������
����
��&�(��&����	��
�����B����0�

���������	�&	������	#
����������
����1��
��A���A��
��������(��	�,������	�;��������
�������
�����	�����(����(������	�
���	����,������������	�������0��������������#��)�
��1���������1��
��(��������1�
���������B�(�������
����1	���	����	��	�6��	�������)�����		����
(��������1��
��������������������0�-�)�,�	��
��1�����
���A���A����)�
�����1�����(����	��
��
����
��	��������	����������0�-���������������������
������
��1��
����1	���	����	��)�����(��
	�,�������	��
����
�	��)�����(�������
����������	�����,�	��
����;���
	������	�0�-��������
�
���	������,�	����
���1�������������������������(��'���	�4���������
����������
	�����������
����	�
�������:58���
�)�,�	��
����	������)����(�������	�����������	���
���
�
��"����)����(����	�����	������������	������B�(���
	���
�����������	�
������
�	�0�/
��
	�����	�������1���	�,����	�����1���	�
������)������11�������	����	��	����1��
��/�)�0�

/
���������5���������.11���	���������
����
�������1�	�����������)�	��(���������
���������
1�	���
���������0�9��	�������(�	�
������
��/�)������	��)����������	����	�����	���	��
��
���������0�9��������
���	����	��)�������,������������	����
����0�/
���	�)�
�����
��
)�����1���	�
������	�6��	����
��	�,�������1������;�	���������	����
���0�-�)�,�	�����
���
��1��
����������	�)�
�)���������	�����(����	��	���
�����
�����	�������
��(�����
�;������;���������
����0�/
��5���������%��
�	����)�	���������	�����
����������������)���
����(����
���1�	�
�	��������	����
����	�,������)�����(�����������������0�

9�����)�	������6���������
��-�����1��
����:��������
��������������������AA��1��
���	��
��(��������$	�1��	�1�		��������	�,���	������	,���������B��	��������������������������#��
(��)����7����&��#(������$�,���	��/�)������	�0�

���������	�������%����)���������
��	���������+���1��
����	�
��������	�
��:5�(���
	���	#����
����
���������	����1	���	����	��)���������������#���������,����	�,���������
�;�������������0�

���������	�%��	��*��+���+������,�����������
�������
��1���	���
�	��)�����(��,�	����������
�(����1���������	��������������
�	�1�	���
�	��)�������������(��	����������(����)
���������
(��	�,����0�

/
���
��	������������
����,�	��������������
����
�	������������(������	�����������
���
�
������������1�������������������	#���������	����������������
��,�����
��0����
������������
��	����	�������
�	��)�����(�������	�������������	�����
����)�	����,���������
���)���,�����
����
��1���	����,������������	�����	�������1�/�)�����	��&	��#�����$�,���	������
��	�
�����0��/
����	������������������	,���
���;���������������0�

�����/�'"��������0�/
����
��.11���	�	�������������������������
���
���������������������������������	�	������������	����,�������
���������	�
������
�	��5��	�����������

��	����	���������������@����������
�������
��	��	�����%����;����(��
�����������	�,��0�

�
�����������������������������0�/
����
���	����(��������,�	������1��
���������	�
������
�	��������

��	����	�������������������(���	�,���1�	��
���������	����;�)��#��
	�	������������	�����������	������)��
�'������������<������=��1��
��
/�)�����������	����������� 7�����$�,�������!� 5������!�
 %��������!�'��������������=�����	���1	����<�
�D�(	��	�������������
��	�
�����0�

�
�0� /
����
��-�����1��
����:�����������������)��
��
���
��	��1��
�������

Page14



=�
�������	�
������
�	����������	����������������������������������������������������	�������

��	�
������
�	����������	��������������������������(�����
�	��������
��#�����������	�����
������	�6��	�������
���	����(��������,�	������1�
�
���������	�
������
�	����������	����	�����0�

�
C0� /
����
���������	�
������
�	��5��	�������������	����	������

�(���
��������������@�(��	�������������
��(������
�����������)�	�������
(���
���	����(��������,�	������1��
���������	�
������
�	��������
��	����	�����0���

������������������������������������������������������������������������

������

���������������

���

�

� �

�������������
�

/
�������������������������0�A�
��	�0�
�
�

Page15



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: Public 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
14th September 2011  
 
No 
 
No  
 
Yes  
 
No  
 
Planning and Regeneration 
 
Cllr. M Hill 
 
Rushmills Ward 

 
 

 
1.  Purpose 

 
1.1 To approve a preferred Skatepark location having considered an evaluation of 

potential sites. 
 
 
2.  Recommendations 

 
2.1 That the preferred Skatepark location on Midsummer Meadow be approved as 

a key component of the emerging Nene Meadows Masterplan (CAAP Policy 
31 - 2011).   

 
2.2 That subject to the approval of Recommendation 2.1, the committed ongoing   

revenue costs of £5,000 be included in the revenue budget for 2012/2013 
onwards. 

 
 
 
 
 

Report Title 
 

Northampton Skatepark Location 

Appendices 

2 

Agenda Item 7

Page16



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 
3.  Issues and Choices 

 
3.1  Report Background 
 
3.1.1 Northampton Borough Council approved a capital project with a budget of 

£250,000 for the design and construction of a Skatepark at Cabinet on 3rd 
November 2010.   

 
3.1.2 Northampton Borough Council (NBC) has been working closely with the 

Skatepark Action Group (SAG) to bring this project forward.  Officers have 
been liaising closely with SAG to establish a preferred location for a Skatepark 
for Northampton and the wider region.   

 
3.1.3 The ‘Locating a Skatepark in Northampton’ report establishes a consistent 2 

stage approach to the evaluation of potential sites by establishing assessment 
matrices; see Appendix A for more detail. This ensured that sites under 
consideration were measured against the same set of criteria. 

 
3.1.4 The Stage One Guiding Principles to assess the potential locations for a 

Skatepark were: 
 

a)  Central/town centre location preferred – although if the site is of 
significant quality, users will be prepared to travel. 

b)  Fits with Policy and or Masterplan for the area. 

c)  Level of residents, ‘friends’ and Skatepark Group support for the project 

d)  Match Funding Availability (funding from HCA, WNDC, S106 and 
others). 

e)  Ownership – Considers whether land is under NBC ownership, other 
public organizations or private ownership. 

f)  Minimal Crime and Community Safety issues 

g)  Accessibility to site for potential users. 

 
3.1.5 Stage Two – Scrutiny of the top 3 scoring sites followed the Stage One 

Evaluation, further consultation feedback was considered by NBC and project 
partners.  

 
3.1.6 NBC Planning Policy team is developing the Nene Meadows Masterplan 

(CAAP Policy 31 - 2011) as part of a Supplementary Planning Document; this 
fully supports in policy terms Midsummer Meadow as the location for a 
Skatepark.  A plan of the proposed location for the Skatepark, is attached, see 
Appendix B. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page17



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 
 
3.2  Issues 
 
3.2.1 The need to choose a preferred site is critical for the Skatepark project to 

progress towards delivery:  
 

a) It will enable the Skatepark Action Group to apply for additional funding;  
  
b) It will enable Officers to release the ‘Design and Build’ Brief to Contractors 

for procurement purposes; 
 
c) Allow Officers to begin work on preparing the Planning Application and 

supporting documents, which, in itself, will allow for formal consultation. 
 
3.2.2 Midsummer Meadow is on a main route into Northampton, and the 

appearance of a Skatepark at this location will require careful design and 
landscaping which will be dealt with within the planning application. 

 
3.2.3 One of the key tasks set for the ‘Skatepark Action Group’ to partner NBC in 

bringing forward the project was to secure additional funding.  Though they 
are progressing with this, as yet they have not achieved any additional 
funding.  A preferred location and formal planning application will support their 
continuing efforts. 

 
3.3  Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 There are two choices available.   
 

a) Approve the preferred location for the Skatepark at Midsummer Meadow. 
 
b) Not approve the site and ask for more work and evaluation of potential 

Skatepark location sites in Northampton. 
 
3.3.2 Given the need to have an approved location and the evaluation and 

consultation work that has already been undertaken, Option b) is unlikely to 
identify a better site.  Option a) is the preferred approach. 

 
4.   Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 The preferred location of the Skatepark on Midsummer Meadow supports 

current planning policy and would be in line with the emerging Masterplan for 
Nene Meadows.  Identifying a “preferred” location at this stage in the project 
does not and cannot prejudice the determination of a subsequent planning 
application. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page18



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 
 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 If the proposed preferred location is approved, the principle resource 

implications are on Officer time to deliver the project and to bring forward an 
appropriate planning application.  Planning Committee will need to consider 
such an application and take into account any representations received.   

 
4.2.2 If a preferred location is not approved and more work on the evaluation is 

asked for, this will delay the delivery of the project.  This will disappoint our 
partners, particularly the Skatepark Action Group, who fully support 
Midsummer Meadow as the preferred location.  

 
4.2.3 A capital budget of £250k has been set aside to deliver this project and all 

costs must be contained within this sum.  The ongoing maintenance costs for 
this facility has not yet been budgeted for and will need to be included in the 
revenue budget for 2012/2013 onwards.  The cost is currently estimated at 
£5,000 and Cabinet will need to agree this, in principle, at this time, if the 
project is to proceed to procurement. 

 
4.3  Legal 

 
4.3.1 It is likely (dependent upon final management responsibility for site) that 

Northampton Borough Council will have to cover the Public Liability Insurance 
for a facility on land in Northampton Borough Council’s ownership.  This will 
need to be agreed as part of the annual ongoing cost. 

 
4.4  Equality 
 
4.4.1 A Screening Equality Impact Assessment, Part 1, of the Strategy has been 

undertaken.  Two issues were identified that could potentially have an adverse 
effect on the equality strands:  

 
a)  Difficulties in ensuring that a full range of age groups can use the facility;  
 
b)   Disability access 

 
4.4.2 If the Skatepark is designed appropriately and youth workers help breakdown 

barriers between different youth groups, the identified issues would be 
reduced. Therefore, a full impact assessment was not deemed necessary. 

 
4.5  Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Internal consultation has been undertaken, as part of the formulation of the 

location options including consultation with – Asset Management, Planning 
Policy, Development Control, Community Safety, Legal Services, 
Regeneration, Development and Assets, Sports Development (now 
Northampton Leisure Trust) and Parks Maintenance (now Enterprise Ltd).  
External consultation has included – Skatepark Action Group, Representatives 
of Friends of Parks and Northamptonshire Police. 

Page19



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 
4.5.2 Further detailed consultation would be undertaken as part of the formal 

planning process, allowing all material planning considerations to be fully 
considered.   

 
4.5.3 As an integral part of the emerging Midsummer Meadows Masterplan, a range 

of consultation exercises/workshops have been completed which have 
influenced the preparation of the overall Masterplan to date.  A report to 
Cabinet is expected by the end of the year to consider the plan for the 
purposes of formal consultation. 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The implementation of a Skatepark contributes towards a number of our 

priorities, particularly the delivery priorities for our community and our town by, 
supporting access to quality leisure facilities, supporting initiatives on healthy 
living – CP3 and by delivering inviting and enjoyable open spaces - CP5.   

 
4.6.2 Implementation of a Skatepark also fulfills one of the outcomes of the 

Corporate Plan, which is to, ‘Create a Skatepark.’  
 
4.7  Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 Following the approval at Cabinet in November 2010 and a number of 

questions to full Council in 2011, there is an expectation from partners that a 
Skatepark will be delivered in a timely manner and for this to happen a 
decision on location is now required.  

 
5.  Background Papers 

 
5.1 Cabinet Minutes from November 2010.   
 
 
 
 

 
Report Authors 
James Ogle, Senior Regeneration Officer, ext 8950. 
 

Page20



Skatepark Location: Cabinet report 14/09/2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page21



L
o

c
a

ti
n

g
 a

 S
k

a
te

p
a

rk
 i

n
 N

o
rt

h
a

m
p

to
n

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 3

/1
1
/2

0
1
0
 o

f 
£
2
5
0
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 i
n
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 S
k
a
te

p
a
rk

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 9

0
0
 s

q
 m

. 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e
s

:

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 s

o
 f

a
r 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
u
id

in
g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e

s
e
 a

re
: 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 –

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

q
u
a
lit

y
, 

u
s
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e
l.
 

F
it
s
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
/o

r 
M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 u

s
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
‘F

ri
e
n
d
s
’ 
a
n
d
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 g
ro

u
p
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
tc

h
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 A

v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 (

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 H
C

A
, 

W
N

D
C

, 
S

1
0
6
 a

n
d
/o

r 
o
th

e
rs

) 

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
C

o
n
s
id

e
rs

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

la
n
d
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

N
B

C
 o

w
n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
o
th

e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 o
rg

a
n
iz

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
p
ri
v
a
te

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 i
f 

n
o
t 

in
 N

B
C

 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
y
 d

ra
m

a
ti
c
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 –
 T

o
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 r
o
u
te

s
, 

in
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
, 

n
o
t 

in
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
‘n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
’,
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
e
rr

it
o
ri
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 u
s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 l
iv

e
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
it
e
s
, 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

m
a
tr

ix
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 
e
n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
it
e
s
 a

re
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

e
t 

o
f 

c
ri
te

ri
a
.

T
h
e
 m

a
tr

ix
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 t
w

o
-s

ta
g
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

1

Page22



S
ta

g
e
s

S
ta

g
e
 1

 -
 T

a
b
le

 1
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
tr

ix
: 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s
C

e
n

tr
a

ll
y

L
o

c
a
te

d
R

a
n

k
S

c
o

re
F

it
 w

it
h

P
o

li
c

y
/M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
s

R
a

n
k

S
c
o

re

R
e
s

id
e
n

t
F

ri
e
n

d
s

o
f 

G
ro

u
p

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
L

e
v
e

l
R

a
n

k
S

c
o

re

M
a

tc
h

fu
n

d
in

g
a
v
a
il

a
b

il
it

y
R

a
n

k
S

c
o

re
O

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

R
a

n
k

S
c
o

re

C
ri

m
e

a
n

d
C

o
m

m
.

S
a

fe
ty

R
a

n
k

S
c
o

re
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
R

a
n

k
S

c
o

re
T

o
ta

l
S

c
o

re
S

it
e

F
e
a
s
ib

il
it

y

M
id

s
u
m

m
e
r

M
e

a
d

o
w

1
.0

7
k
m

M
e

d
iu

m
2

N
e

n
e

 M
e

a
d
o
w

s
S

tr
a
te

g
y

3

M
e
d
iu

m
a

s
u

n
k
n

o
w

n
2

L
o

w
1

H
ig

h
3

M
e

d
2

M
e

d
2

1
5

In
c
lu

d
e

A
b
in

g
to

n
P

a
rk

2
.3

k
m

M
e
d
iu

m
2

M
e
d
iu

m
2

L
o

w
 -

 
H

is
to

ri
c

P
a

rk
1

L
o

w
1

H
ig

h
3

M
e

d
2

M
e

d
2

1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

T
h

e
R

a
c
e
c
o

u
rs

e
9
7
0
m

H
ig

h
3

M
e
d

iu
m

2
M

e
d
iu

m
2

L
o

w
1

H
ig

h
3

M
e

d
/H

ig
h

2
.5

M
e

d
2

1
5
.5

In
c
lu

d
e

F
o

o
tm

e
a
d

o
w

6
1
0
m

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
1

M
e
d
iu

m
 -

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
2

L
o

w
1

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
1

M
e

d
2

1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

L
a

d
y
b

ri
d

g
e

3
.7

9
k
m

 -
L

o
w

1
M

e
d

iu
m

2
M

e
d
iu

m
 -

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
3

M
e

d
iu

m
1

H
ig

h
3

M
e

d
2

L
o

w
1

1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

B
e

c
k
e

ts
 P

a
rk

5
7

5
m

 -
 

H
ig

h
3

P
o
o

r
1

P
o

o
r

1
L

o
w

1
H

ig
h

3
M

e
d

2
M

e
d

2
1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

K
in

g
s
 H

e
a
th

 
O

v
a
l

2
.6

k
m

 -
 

L
o

w
1

P
o
o
r 

- 
D

a
lli

n
g
to

n
G

ra
n
g

e
1

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
1

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
1

L
o

w
1

1
1

E
x
c
lu

d
e

S
ix

fi
e
ld

s
 /
 

U
p

to
n

2
.6

k
m

 -
 

H
ig

h
2

M
e
d
iu

m
2

M
e
d
iu

m
 -

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
2

H
ig

h
3

M
e

d
 -

 H
C

A
2

L
o

w
1

M
e

d
2

1
4

In
c
lu

d
e

S
tu

d
la

n
d

R
o

a
d

2
.1

k
m

 -
 

M
e
d
iu

m
2

M
e
d
iu

m
2

M
e
d
iu

m
 -

u
n

k
n

o
w

n
2

M
e

d
iu

m
2

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
1

L
o

w
1

1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

E
a
s
tf
ie

ld
P

a
rk

3
.6

k
m

 -
 

L
o

w
1

M
e
d
iu

m
2

M
e
d
iu

m
G

o
o

d
2

M
e

d
iu

m
2

H
ig

h
3

L
o

w
/M

e
d

2
L

o
w

1
1
3

E
x
c
lu

d
e

K
e

y
C

e
n
tr

a
lly

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 (

M
a
rk

e
t 
S

q
u
a
re

) 
- 

H
ig

h
 -

 w
it
h
in

 1
k
m

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
, 
M

e
d
iu

m
 -

 w
it
h
in

 2
k
m

 o
f 
to

w
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
L
o
w

 -
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

F
it
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

y
/M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
s

- 
p
o
o
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
p
o
lic

y
/m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 
m

e
d
iu

m
 -

 n
o
t 
ru

le
d
 o

u
t 
o
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y
 p

o
lic

y
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
, 
g
o
o
d

 –
 f
it
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 o

r 
p

o
lic

y
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 
F

ri
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
G

ro
u
p

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 L
e
v
e
l 
- 

p
o
o
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
id

e
a
, 
m

e
d
iu

m
 -

 n
o
t 
ru

le
d
 o

u
t 
g
ro

u
p
s

w
o
u
ld

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

o
p

ti
o

n
 /
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
, 
g
o
o

d
- 

fi
ts

 w
it
h

 g
ro

u
p

 p
la

n
s

C
u
rr

e
n

t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 -

 L
o
w

 n
o
n
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
r 

b
e
lo

w
 £

2
5
,0

0
0
,
M

e
d
iu

m
 £

2
5
,0

0
0
 -

 £
1
0
0
,0

0
0
, 
H

ig
h
 £

1
0
0

,0
0
0
+

O
w

n
e

rs
h
ip

 –
 L

o
w

 n
o

t 
in

 N
B

C
 o

w
n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
M

e
d
 –

 L
e
a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

N
B

C
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
y
, 
H

ig
h

 –
 L

a
n

d
 w

h
o
lly

 o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 N

B
C

C
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 -

 L
o
w

 i
s
o
la

te
d
 s

it
e
 w

it
h

 l
o
w

 n
a
tu

ra
l
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
,
M

e
d
 -

 R
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 a

re
a

 h
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
A

S
B

, 
H

ig
h
 -

 V
e
ry

 s
a

fe
 l
o
w

 A
S

B
, 

g
o

o
d

 n
a

tu
ra

l
s
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 -
 p

o
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
ro

m
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 o

r 
n
o
t 
s
e
e
n
 a

s
 t
o
w

n
 w

id
e
, 
m

e
d
iu

m
 -

 o
n
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

s
 o

r 
c
lo

s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t
o
 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
,
h
ig

h
 –

 P
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n
,

e
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le

2

Page23



S
ta

g
e
 2

 –
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
S

ta
g
e
 t

w
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
s
it
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 q

u
a

lif
y
 f

ro
m

 S
ta

g
e
 O

n
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
tr

ix
 a

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
s
e
e
n
 i
n
 t

a
b
le

 2
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

A
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 i
n

 S
ta

g
e
 2

 

M
id

s
u

m
m

e
r 

M
e
a
d

o
w

In
it
ia

lly
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 l
it
tl
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e

a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 u

s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d

, 
n
o
t 

h
id

d
e
n
 

a
w

a
y
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
a
k
in

g
 f

u
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
s
y
 r

o
a
d
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

is
u
s
e
.

Is
s
u

e
R

is
k

M
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

R
is

k

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty

M
e
d
/H

ig
h

P
la

c
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

h
id

d
e
n
, 

to
 t

a
k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
s
y
 r

o
a
d
, 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

is
u
s
e
. 

 A
 s

it
e
 v

is
it
 w

a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 s

k
a
te

rs
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 r
e
a
s
s
u
re

d
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

L
o
w

T
o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

M
e
d

C
o
n
v
e
rs

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

re
v
e
a
le

d
 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
s
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 5

%
 m

o
re

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 a
b
o
v
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
. 

L
o
w

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
M

e
d

N
e
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 w

it
h
in

 N
B

C
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

M
e
d
/L

o
w

A
e
s
th

e
ti
c
s

M
e
d

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p

in
g
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

 
p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 c
o
n
fl
ic

ts
 w

it
h

 c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

L
o
w

P
la

n
n
in

g
M

e
d

W
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

 f
u
ll 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

- 
th

is
 w

ill
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 f
lo

o
d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
tr

a
 c

o
s
ts

. 
M

e
d

M
id

s
u
m

m
e
r 

M
e
a
d
o
w

 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
e
v
e
l 
s
o
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
s
lo

p
e
s
 o

r 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 t

h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 r
e
a
d
ily

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

to
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y
. 

 C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 m

e
a
n
 u

s
in

g
 s

o
il 

o
n
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 o

n
 s

it
e
 o

r 
im

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

o
il 

to
 c

re
a
te

 s
lo

p
e
s
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

x
 5

%
 m

o
re

, 
b
u
t 

is
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

lo
o
d
p
la

in
, 
d
ig

g
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

a
te

r 
ta

b
le

. 
 I

n
 r

e
a
lit

y
 i
f 

a
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 p

la
c
e
d
 h

e
re

 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e

 s
o
m

e
 c

o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 
g
a
te

w
a
y
 s

it
e
 i
n
to

 N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
g
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

e
s
th

e
ti
c
s
 o

f 
a
 S

k
a

te
p
a
rk

 a
t 

th
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 m

ig
h
t

n
o
t 

b
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
f 

it
 i
s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
tl
y
 b

u
ilt

, 
a
b
o
v
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
.

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 a
re

a
, 

‘N
e
n
e
 M

e
a
d
o
w

s
’ 
w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

le
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 G

re
e
n
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

; 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
c
o
u
ld

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 c
a
ta

ly
s
t 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 v
is

io
n
. 

 N
B

C
 

3

Page24



P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 N

e
n
e
 M

e
a
d
o
w

s
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 (

C
A

A
P

 P
o

lic
y
 3

1
 -

 2
0
1
1
) 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t;

th
is

 f
u
lly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 M

id
s
u
m

m
e
r 

M
e
a
d
o
w

 a
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

. 
 I

t 
is

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

W
N

D
C

 c
o
u
ld

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 s
it
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 

fi
ts

 i
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
A

v
o
n
 N

u
n
n
/M

ill
s
 a

n
d
 W

a
te

rs
id

e
).

 

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 c
a
n
 b

e
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
v
e
rs

ia
l 
fo

r 
a
n
y
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h

th
is

 a
re

a
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

 l
o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
, 

a
s
 l
a
n
d
 u

s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 e

it
h
e
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

s
e
 o

r 
g
re

e
n
s
p
a
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

o
u
tl
in

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
it
e
 s

iz
e
, 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
, 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 w
h
ils

t 
a
ls

o
 i
llu

s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 a

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
th

is
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
le

a
rl
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
, 

u
n
le

s
s
 

s
e
lf
-f

in
a
n
c
in

g
, 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 N
B

C
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
is

 o
p
ti
o
n

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
’s

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
ix

fi
e
ld

s
 /

 U
p

to
n

 (
2
 o

p
ti

o
n

s
) 

a
)

N
e
a
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 -

 H
C

A
 i
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 o
w

n
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 i
n
 

th
is

 a
re

a
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 w

it
h
 H

C
A

.
b

)
S

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 l

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
to

 A
th

le
ti

c
s
 t

ra
c
k
 -

 H
C

A
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

e
t-

a
s
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

ix
fi
e
ld

s
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

, 
b
u
t 

n
o
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 

 D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 H
C

A
 a

b
o
u

t 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

la
n
d
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
t-

a
s
id

e
 i
n
 

th
e
 S

ix
fi
e
ld

s
 a

re
a
 h

a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 w

it
h
 H

C
A

. 
 H

C
A

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 p

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 S

ix
fi
e

ld
s
 a

re
a

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
s
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

re
ta

il 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 (

a
g
a
in

s
t 

P
P

S
4

) 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
n
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 b

y
 N

B
C

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

u
g
b
y
 C

lu
b
 a

n
d
 F

o
o
tb

a
ll 

C
lu

b
 w

it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
f 

th
e
y
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
w

.
H

C
A

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 f

ro
m

 N
B

C
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
b
ri
n
g
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  

Id
e
a
lly

, 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 h
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

m
ix

e
d
 u

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
ta

il,
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 m

a
y
 t

a
k
e
 m

a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r.

T
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 S
k
a
te

p
a
rk

 d
o
e
s
n
’t
 f

it
 i
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
w

e
 (

N
B

C
 a

n
d
 S

k
a
te

 P
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
) 

h
a
v
e
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 S
k
a
te

p
a
rk

.

Is
s
u

e
R

is
k

M
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

R
is

k

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

M
e
d
/H

ig
h

P
la

c
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

h
id

d
e
n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
s
y
 r

o
a
d
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 r

is
k
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

is
u
s
e

. 
 S

it
e
 v

is
it
s
 w

it
h
 s

k
a
te

rs
 

to
 r

e
a
s
s
u
re

 t
h
e
m

 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

L
o
w

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 –
 

D
is

ta
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 
to

w
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

H
ig

h
G

o
o
d
 b

u
s
 r

o
u
te

 a
n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 a

re
a
 –

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
 a

 b
a
rr

ie
r 

to
 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ty
 u

s
e
rs

, 
d
u
e
 t

o
 d

is
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

g
e
tt
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
.

H
ig

h

L
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
H

ig
h

H
C

A
 a

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 o
w

n
e
r 

o
f 

la
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ic
in

it
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 c
a
ta

ly
s
t 

fo
r 

M
e
d

4

Page25



R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 H

C
A

 s
k
a
te

 p
a
rk

 u
s
a
g
e
 o

f 
a
 

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 u
s
e
,

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

 L
a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 N

B
C

 a
t 

p
e
p
p
e
rc

o
rn

 r
e
n
t.
 

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

H
ig

h
A

s
 l
a
n
d
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 w
o
u
ld

 o
n
ly

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

e
it
h
e
r 

a
 w

id
e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

e
it
h
e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

u
n
it
s
 h

a
s
 s

lo
w

e
d
 d

o
w

n
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
; 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
it
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e
a
rs

 b
e
fo

re
 a

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

.

M
e
d

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

M
e
d

N
e
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
.

M
e
d
/L

o
w

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

M
e
d

W
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

 f
u
ll 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

- 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 l
a

n
d

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 P

P
S

4
. 

 I
s
s
u
e
 w

it
h
 i
t 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 W

a
te

rs
id

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 Z

o
n
e
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

M
e
d

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 c
a
n
 b

e
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
v
e
rs

ia
l 
fo

r 
lo

c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
it
e
 s

iz
e
, 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
re

v
e

n
u
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

, 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
, 

s
e

c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
le

a
rl
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
, 

u
n
le

s
s
 s

e
lf
-f

in
a
n
c
in

g
, 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

t 
S

ix
fi
e
ld

s
 a

n
d
 

U
p
to

n
 w

ill
 f

it
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 

B
o
th

 s
it
e
s
 a

t 
S

ix
fi
e
ld

s
 a

n
d
 U

p
to

n
 a

re
 g

o
o
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
; 

th
e
y
 a

re
 j
u
s
t 
o
ff
 t

h
e
 M

1
 m

o
to

rw
a
y
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 g
o
o
d
 r

o
a
d
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
.

a
)

N
e
a
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 -

 T
h
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 H

C
A

 c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
S

1
0
6
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
e
a
rb

y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

, 
H

C
A

 w
o
u
ld

n
’t
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 l
a
rg

e
r 

s
iz

e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 n
e
a
r 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

.
b

)
S

e
t 

a
s
id

e
 l

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
to

 A
th

le
ti

c
s
 t

ra
c
k
 -

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 f

a
lls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 W

a
te

rs
id

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 Z

o
n
e
 a

n
d
 a

 S
k
a
te

p
a
rk

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

u
rs

u
it
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 2

.3
k
m

 a
w

a
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

m
e
a
n
in

g
 t

w
o
 b

u
s
 r

id
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
rs

. 

T
h

e
 R

a
c
e
c
o

u
rs

e
 

T
h
is

 l
a
rg

e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 p

a
rk

 c
o
u
ld

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
 s

k
a

te
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
n
 3

 o
r 

4
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 (

2
0
0
9
-2

0
1
1
) 

h
a
d
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

y
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
t 

lo
c
a
l 
o
p
p

o
s
it
io

n
, 

m
a
in

ly
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

a
n
te

d
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

ra
l

n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘
v
a
lle

y
’ 
a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

.
It
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
 o

f 
a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 w
o
u
ld

 e
n

c
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
to

 t
h
e
 ‘
v
a
lle

y
’ 
a
re

a
, 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
re

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
a
n
t 
to

 p
ro

te
c
t,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 a

n
y
 m

o
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
o
n
, 

‘s
p
o
ili

n
g
’ 
th

e
 

5

Page26



n
a
tu

ra
l/
a
e
s
th

e
ti
c
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 ‘
F

ri
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
’ 
h
a
v
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 g
e

n
e
ra

lly
h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 a

 3
0
 x

 2
0
m

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 b

u
t 
if
 i
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 l
a
rg

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 o
f 

a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
o
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 f

e
lt
 i
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
la

c
e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 t
ra

ff
ic

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 (

c
lu

tt
e

ri
n
g
) 

a
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e

s
.

 A
 l
a
rg

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ty
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

‘F
ri
e
n
d
s
’.
  

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 5

0
 x

 3
0
m

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 b
ig

g
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
iz

e
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
.

Is
s
u

e
R

is
k

M
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

R
is

k

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n

o
f 

C
ri
m

e
 

a
n
d

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
a
fe

ty

M
e
d

P
la

c
e
 i
n
 w

e
ll 

u
s
e
d
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

h
id

d
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 f

u
ll 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
a
tu

ra
l 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 
o

th
e

r 
p

a
rk

 u
s
e

rs
.

M
e
d
/L

o
w

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

H
ig

h
A

s
 l
a
n
d
 i
s
n
’t
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 w
o
u

ld
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

e
it
h
e
r 

a
 w

id
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
it
h
e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

r 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
s
 h

a
s
 s

lo
w

e
d
 d

o
w

n
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
; 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
it
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e
a
rs

 b
e
fo

re
 a

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

.

H
ig

h

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 /
 

M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
fo

r 
P

a
rk

 

H
ig

h
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
; 

fr
o
m

 p
a
s
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
‘F

ri
e
n
d
s
’ 
a
n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
th

is
 t

a
k
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 t
im

e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
o
rt

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 

‘F
ri
e
n
d
s
’ 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

h
e
 d

o
e
s
 w

a
rn

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 h

ig
h
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

p
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

 O
th

e
r 

p
la

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
o
v
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
 

a
n
d
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
/f
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

M
e
d

P
la

n
n
in

g
M

e
d

W
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e

 f
u
ll 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l
s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

- 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 

w
it
h

in
th

e
 p

a
rk

, 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

M
e
d

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
v
e
rs

ia
l 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d

 F
ri
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 G

ro
u
p
. 

 T
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
s
it
e
 s

iz
e
, 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r,
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 
s
u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e

,
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
le

a
rl
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

 f
a
c
ili

ty
, 

u
n
le

s
s
 s

e
lf
-f

in
a
n
c
in

g
, 

w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

S
tu

d
la

n
d

 R
o

a
d

 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 s
it
e
 d

id
n
’t
 c

o
m

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
g
e
 O

n
e
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
tr

ix
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
v
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
t.
  

T
h
e
 S

k
a
te

p
a
rk

 A
c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

fe
e
l 
th

is
 s

it
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
s
, 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 o

p
in

io
n
, 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 v
e
ry

 h
ig

h
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 b

e
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

v
a
n
d
a
lis

m
.

6

Page27



T
a
b

le
 (

2
) 

–
 M

a
tr

ix
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s

C
e
n

tr
a
ll

y
L

o
c
a
te

d
 -

 
R

a
n

k

F
it

 w
it

h
P

o
li

c
y
/M

a
s

te
rp

la
n

- 
R

a
n

k
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t
/ 

F
ri

e
n

d
s

 
o

f 
G

ro
u

p
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

L
e

v
e

l 
- 

R
a
n

k

M
a
tc

h
fu

n
d

in
g

a
v

a
il

a
b

il
it

y
N

B
C

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

C
ri

m
e

a
n

d
C

o
m

m
S

a
fe

ty
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

S
k
a
te

P
a
rk

A
c
ti

o
n

G
ro

u
p

S
u

p
p

o
r

t
T

o
ta

l
S

c
o

re

S
it

e
F

e
a

s
ib

il
it

y
O

v
e

ra
ll

M
id

s
u

m
m

e
r

M
e
a
d
o
w

1
.0

7
k
m

 –
 

3
N

e
n
e
 M

e
a
d
o
w

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 -

 3
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 2

L
o
w

 –
 1

 
H

ig
h
 –

 3
 

M
e
d
 –

 2
M

e
d
 –

 2
 

H
ig

h
 –

 3
1
9

P
ro

c
e
e
d

S
ix

fi
e
ld

s
 /

 
U

p
to

n
2
.6

k
m

 -
 2

 L
o
w

 -
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
re

a
 –

 1
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 2

L
o
w

 –
 1

 
L
o
w

 –
 1

 
M

e
d
 –

 2
L
o
w

 –
 1

 
L
o
w

 –
 1

1
1

D
o

n
't

P
ro

c
e
e
d

T
h
e

R
a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
9
7
0
m

 -
 3

 
L
o
w

 -
 R

a
c
e
c
o
u
rs

e
 

M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 -

 1
 

L
o
w

/M
e
d

- 
1
 

L
o
w

 -
 1

 
H

ig
h
 -

 3
 

M
e
d
/H

ig
h
 –

2
.5

 
M

e
d
 -

 2
 

L
o
w

 -
 1

1
4
.5

D
o

n
't

P
ro

c
e
e
d

R
e
p
o

rt
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 b

y
: 
J
a
m

e
s
 O

g
le

 
1
5
/0

8
/2

0
1
1

7

Page28



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B

Page29



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

1

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
14th September 2011 
 
No 
 
YES 
 
YES 
 
NO 
 
Planning & Regeneration 
 
Cllr Tim Hadland 
 
St James, Castle, Delapre & Briar Hill 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To advise Cabinet of the award of Enterprise Zone status from the Department 

of Community Local Government (CLG) to the Northampton Waterside 
Enterprise Zone proposal submitted by South East Midlands Enterprise 
Partnership. 

 
1.2 To inform Cabinet on the next steps necessary to implement the Northampton 

Waterside Enterprise Zone on behalf of the South East Midlands Local 
Enterprise Partnership (SEMLEP), and to seek authority to proceed.   

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet welcomes the award of Enterprise Zone status for the 

Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone following the bid submitted by and 
endorsed by the South East Midlands Enterprise Partnership (SEMLEP). 

 
2.2 That Cabinet notes the extensive activity needed from the Borough Council 

and partners to implement the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone, as set 
out in the report. 

Report Title 
 

Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone 

Appendices: 
 

None 

Agenda Item 8

Page30



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

2

 
2.3 That Cabinet instructs the Chief Executive and the Director of Planning and 

Regeneration to take such action as is necessary in consultation with the 
portfolio holder for Regeneration and Enterprise, and the Leader of the 
Council, to progress the workstreams identified in this report. 

 
 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 On 6th July 2011, NBC Cabinet endorsed the submission through SEMLEP of 

the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone application to Government.  On 
17th August 2011 the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(CLG) announced that Enterprise Zone status has been awarded to the 
proposed Zone.   

 
3.1.2 As part of the Budget in March 2011, the Chancellor announced the 

Government’s intention to identify a total of 22 Enterprise Zones. Some were 
identified nationally, others were subject to a national competition for the 
Enterprise Zone benefits.  

 
3.1.3 Northampton is part of the South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership 

(SEMLEP) that covers a wide geographical area including most of 
Northamptonshire, Bedfordshire, Luton, Milton Keynes, Cherwell, Aylesbury 
Vale and Dacorum. 

 
3.1.4 SEMLEP went through a competitive selection process. Seven bids were 

presented to SEMLEP, resulting in Northampton’s Enterprise zone being 
chosen to progress to the national competition as the regional bid. 

 
3.1.5 Northampton Borough Council (NBC) has taken a lead role, with the 

substantial support of partners, in developing a bid for the establishment of a 
Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone.   

 
3.1.6 Enterprise Zones seek to stimulate economic growth through fiscal incentives, 

reduced planning restrictions and the provision of "superfast" broadband. They 
will offer a business rate discount worth up to £275,000 over five years for 
firms that move into the area before 31 March 2015.  Government will 
reimburse the discounts given up to 2015.  The enterprise zone targets to 
create 7,700 direct new jobs within the Enterprise Zone by 2015 and 17,000 
new jobs across the SEMLEP area by 2021. 

 
3.1.7 The uplift in business rates receipts after 2015 as a result of the introduction of 

an Enterprise Zone will be used to support the priorities of SEMLEP.  All 
business rate growth within the zone for a period of 25 years will be retained 
and reinvested in the local area (as currently set out in the CLG prospectus), 
to support the local enterprise partnership’s priorities.  

 
3.1.8 A strong network of key delivery partners has been assembled to tackle the 

issues and ensure successful delivery of inward investment and job creation 
under the overall umbrella of SEMLEP.  These include West Northampton-

Page31



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

3

shire Development Corporation (WNDC), Northamptonshire County Council 
(NCC), Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), University of Northampton 
(UoN), a4e, and Ingeus and Northamptonshire Enterprise Partnership (NEP). 

 
3.1.9 Key features of the Northampton Waterside include: 
 

• An area that stretches from Sixfields in the west, across St James 
industrial estate to the Avon/Nunn Mills Road in the east;  

 
• The ambition to become a National Centre of Excellence for advanced 

technologies, precision engineering, environmental and low carbon 
technology as well as professional, financial, business services and leisure 
orientated businesses; 

 
• Key employers and partners in this area who support the bid include 

Carlsberg, Avon, Travis Perkins and the Town Centre BID; 
 

• Key existing employers, all within the vicinity of Northampton that would 
help to support the sectors in the zone include: Cosworth, Ilmor 
Engineering, Mahle Powertrain, Mercedes Benz High Performance 
Engines and Mugen Euro motorsport;   

 
• An enterprise zone target to create 7,700 direct new jobs within the Zone 

by 2015 and 17,000 new jobs across the SEMLEP area by 2021. 
 
3.1.10 The Zone will be supported by a Local Development Order (LDO) that enables 

business to have pre-determined planning rules that encourage development, 
and remove barriers, thereby accelerating processes and reducing red tape.  
The full details of an LDO will be the subject of consultation and future Cabinet 
approval. 

 
3.1.11 Government is still developing the detailed guidelines and criteria around the 

Enterprise Zone process, in particular its future approach to the redistribution 
of business rates.  The Council will monitor this carefully to optimise the 
benefits for Northampton and the wider SEMLEP region. 

 
3.1.12 A simplified ‘one stop shop’ development team approach will be developed to 

help facilitate an attractive option for investors and employers to choose 
Northampton and the South East Midlands area. 

 
3.2 Delivery 
 
3.2.1 The delivery of the Enterprise Zone over the next ten years will require the 

prioritisation of a number of workstreams, which have been initially scoped as 
follows. 

 
1. Local Development Order - The time scale within the prospectus is 
for this to be in place by 31 March 2012.  This will require extensive 
work in short period, led by the Council’s planning department. 
Additional resource will be needed, to be drawn from reserves held for 
the purpose of supporting economic growth and planning.  
 

Page32



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

4

2. Governance Structure – Governance proposals contained in the 
submission to Government will now be enacted, with local 
arrangements to include partners and SEMLEP. These will be 
supported in their operation by the Borough Council who will be acting 
as the local lead organisation and administrators.  

 
3. Communications (both public communication and 
communication with investors and delivery partners) – It is very 
important to keep the public, local business and the community at large 
aware of what is happening in the zone and to ensure that information 
is fully up to date and relevant. At the same time, investors, 
landowners, developers and end-user businesses need equally 
powerful and well-focussed information to support their roles in delivery 
as, of course, do various public agency partners. 
 
Whilst an early website exists, a more fully interactive website needs to 
be developed that guides people to the information they require quickly 
such as landowners, potential investors and businesses, as well as the 
general public.  This will also require investment, and discussions 
indicate that some partners will be able to support this financially. 
 
Forums will be arranged, to give general promotion of the Enterprise 
Zone across the SEMLEP region and include a wider Enterprise Zone 
and Landowners forum.  The first forum may be timed to co-inside with 
the development of the Local Development Order consultation and will 
be an integral part of the Communications strategy. 
 
4. Land management - Initial meetings and information-gathering 
sessions are needed on the sites to inform development and enquiries.  
The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) are currently assisting in 
the consideration of a joint public land initiative. 
 
5. Developing Opportunities. – We need to explore promotional 
opportunities working through SEMLEP with UK Trade and Industry 
(UKTI), and opportunities to ensure that SMEs are fully engaged in the 
development of the EZ, including exploring the potential for developing 
space for SMEs with developers. It is expected that SEMLEP and the 
Borough Council will seek to work with Northamptonshire Enterprise 
Partnership in a co-ordinated fashion on promotion of the zone for 
investment purposes. 
 
6. Strategic Partner Relations – The support of partners was 
essential to achieving the approval of Government. They will also be 
essential to delivery. Developing constructive and effective relations 
with key strategic partners including CLG, NCC, WNDC, HCA, 
Environment Agency, the Chamber of Commerce and the wider 
Private Sector, and NEP will be an integral part of the process.  There 
will also be potential to explore links to other EZ’s and work with them/ 
learn from them. 
 
7. Project Delivery – A number of major interventions are being 
managed already by partners and we need to manage the interaction 

Page33



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

5

between them and the Enterprise Zone to gain maximum overall 
benefit and growth. This includes projects such as the Castle Station, 
the University Innovation Centre, and Avon/Nunn Mills. The EZ 
arrangements need to act in support of these projects and ease their 
delivery, not create any additional complexity. 
 
8. Employment/ training initiatives – It is vital to the EZ that jobs 
created in the zone will be accessible to all and that where these 
require training or support to enable those seeking work to gain 
access, this is provided. The two agencies delivering the work 
programme (A4e and Ingeus) have been excellent supporters of the 
zone proposal. This important workstream will explore options and 
initiatives with key local/ national stakeholders to provide schemes 
applicable to the EZ and promote training and employment initiatives 
related to the zone. 

 
 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 At July 2011 Cabinet, members agreed to the proposal to proceed with the 

application to CLG, having secured SEMLEP’s endorsement and national 
CLG award of EZ status not proceeding at this time would be seriously 
damaging to the future economic prospects for the town and a major loss of 
reputation.  Not proceeding is not considered a viable option.  Members are 
therefore recommended to proceed. 

  
3.3.2 Choices will exist within each workstream and these will be addressed as the 

programme progresses, referring to Cabinet as appropriate. It is proposed that 
the Chief Executive and the Director of Planning and Regeneration consult 
throughout with the Leader and the Portfolio Holder on key actions and report 
to Cabinet as required. 

 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 The Enterprise Zone has the potential to play an important role in increasing 

the prosperity of large areas of urban Northampton  It will act as a powerful 
catalyst to enhance the towns reputation, its perception in the market place 
and accelerate other growth/ regenerations opportunities.  It is an integral part 
of the Corporate Plan and will also support the strategic objectives and vision 
in both the Northampton Central Area Action Plan and the Joint Core Strategy 
for the wider area.  The focus of both of these strategic planning policy 
documents is to facilitate growth and substantial regeneration, creating 
environmental improvement, new jobs and inward investment in 
Northampton’s central area and across the Borough.   

 
4.1.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 Nearly half of the proposed zone is already in public ownership, including 

areas owned by NBC, HCA and NCC and these agencies are agreed, in 

Page34



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

6

principle, to develop a public land strategy.  A strategy when developed will be 
presented to Cabinet for consideration. 

 
4.2.2 A general commitment and support from public, private and voluntary sectors  

is evident and this commitment will make delivery more realistic. 
 
4.2.3 WNDC has a £20m capital investment funding programme confirmed for the 

next three years which will be focused on 5 key regeneration projects, mostly 
within Northampton. This funding combined with enterprise zone status, 
section 106 agreements, and other third party sources, will support the 
delivery of enabling infrastructure for key regeneration projects in 
Northampton and the progress of the EZ. 

 
4.2.4 Set up costs, for both one off and ongoing including those for setting up the 

systems required for managing the NNDR discount for businesses moving into 
the zone, would need to be funded, and made available this year and where 
relevant, built into the 2012/ 2013 budget.  Where Cabinet approval is needed, 
this will be sought. 

 
4.2.5 There are key risks with the ‘in principle’ commitment to use the uplift in 

business rates in a specific way.  At present the business rates collected on 
behalf of NBC are paid into central Government as part of NNDR pooling and 
redistributed to local authorities through the formula grant mechanism.  Under 
the Enterprise Zone scheme, the additional NNDR wouldn't specifically return 
to NBC to be able to be invested in the local area but would be prioritised 
through SEMLEP.  It remains, as yet, unclear how the Government's 
Enterprise Zone scheme will fit with the Local Government Finance Review, 
which is heavily based around reforms to the way in which NNDR is 
distributed to local authorities.  As a result there remains a similar risk that the 
necessary equalisation mechanism would not favour Northampton.  These 
matters and related NNDR issues remain under review. 

 
4.2.6 There is further clarity required from Government on the management of 

NNDR and the mechanism on how this will benefit the local area i.e. 
reimbursement to local authorities/ local enterprise over the 25 years.  The 
benefit is clearer for local businesses that invest in the local enterprise zone 
where they will benefit directly from an NNDR rebate. 

 
4.2.7 The Government Scheme for Enterprise Zones includes the ability to retain 

any additional rates generated by the Zone for 25 years to “support the Local 
Enterprise Partnership Priorities”.  Whilst this could be highly beneficial to the 
town, it will require agreement within SEM LEP to determine how this resource 
will be utilised.   

 
4.2.8 CLG’s prospectus lists a further benefit will be that properties within the 

Enterprise Zone will have access to super-fast broadband.  How this will roll 
out in practise is still being considered by Government. 

 
4.2.10 It is expected that through the creation of enhanced employment opportunities 

with the creation of an Enterprise Zone, additional benefits will be realised in 
the form of reduced unemployment and housing benefits payable by central 
and local government. 

Page35



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

7

 

4.2.11 Other possible risks, particularly due to the national economic picture, 
including a slower actual rate of development with business take-up/ 
occupancy less than envisaged providing reduced early benefits. 

4.2.12 A full risk register will be prepared as part of our governance process for this 
initiative. 

 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 We are awaiting paperwork from CLG on the precise terms/ conditions for the 

Enterprise Zone. 
 
4.4 Equality 
 
4.4.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment will be completed on a site by site basis and 

in relation to the LDO and any related policy/ strategy. 
 
 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 West Northamptonshire Development Corporation (WNDC), Northamptonshire 

County Council (NCC), Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), and 
Northamptonshire Enterprise Partnership were all consulted when the bid was 
prepared.  

 
4.5.2 A series of meetings and presentations have been held with key partners.  

The Leader and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Enterprise have been 
briefed regularly which has proved beneficial.  A paper with the CLG bid was 
presented to Management Board and to 6th July 2011 Cabinet. 

 
4.5.3 A significant number of letters of support were also received including: 

A4e, Automotive Mechatronics Ltd, AVK UK Ltd, Avon, Belway, Brackmills BID, 
British Institute of NDT, Carlsberg, Carter Jonas, Cave & Sons, Cherwell District 
Council, Daventry District Council, Deeley Properties, DFA Law, DKL Marketing 
Ltd, EMB, Evens Easy Space, Federation of Small Business, Frog Island 
Brewery, General Motors, Green House, Homes and Communities Agency 
(HCA), HW Chartered Accountants, Ingeus, Itarus Ltd, Kettering Borough 
Council, Landmark Lifts, Lambert Smith Hampton, Legal & General, London 
Luton Airport, MAHLE Powertrain, Mercedes GP Petronas & HPE, Milton Keynes 
Council, National Apprenticeship Service, Northampton College, 
Northamptonshire Chamber of Commerce, Northamptonshire County Council, 
Northamptonshire I.O.D, Northampton Town Football Club, Northamptonshire 
Enterprise Partnership (NEP), Nortoft, Orange Instruments Ltd, , Northampton 
Town Centre BID, Princes Trust, Ricoh, Scott Barder, Silverstone, SNEB, Stuart 
Banks Engineering Ltd, Sundial, University of Northampton, Westbridge Motors, 
Wyboston Lakes and YMCA.  
 

4.5.4 Letters of thanks have been sent to all who supported the bid. 
  
 
 

Page36



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\7\5\AI00035576\$lsh2vfpk.doc 

8

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 A successful enterprise zone will provide a significant boost to the economic 

performance of Northampton and will “take Northampton to the market” in a 
way not seen for many years.   

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 Enterprise Zones are expected to be promoted by UK Trade and Industry.  

The benefits from this government promotion, as one of only 22 in England, 
will raise the profile of Northampton as a destination for investment and 
business creation. 

 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 CLG Enterprise zone prospectus and guidance. 
 
5.2 Bid submission to SEMLEP June 2011. 
 

 
David Kennedy, Chief Executive, tel: 7726 
David Bailey, Director of Planning and Regeneration, tel: 8531 
Chris Cavanagh, Head of Regeneration & Development, tel: 8461 
Mick Lorkins, Regeneration, Development & Assets, tel: 8033 
 
 
 
 

Page37



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 1

 

 

CABINET REPORT 
 

 
 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
14 September 2011 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Planning & Regeneration 
 
Cllr Tim Hadland 
 
Castle 
 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to seek the authority of Cabinet to the disposal of 

freehold property, identified in Appendix 1, by way of the grant of two 999 years 
leases. 

 
 

2.   Recommendation 

 
2.1  That Cabinet gives authority in principle for this Council to grant a 999 years lease 

to the Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) of those parts of 
the premises known as Campbell Square Police and Magistrates Court complex 
(shown edged red on the attached plan at Appendix 1) that are presently occupied 
and used by the Courts Service. The terms of this lease to be generally consistent 
with the principles set out in the body of this report and having regard to the 
obligations of the Council under the Courts Act 2003.  

 
 
 

Report Title 
 

Land & Buildings at Campbell Square – property 
ownership and occupation 

Item No. 

9 
Appendices 
 

1 

Agenda Item 9

Page38



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 2

 
 
 
2.2  That Cabinet gives authority in principle for the Council to grant a 999 years lease 

to Northamptonshire Police Authority of those parts of the premises described at 
2.1 above that are presently occupied and utilised by the Police Service. The terms 
of this lease to be generally consistent with the approach and principles set out in 
the body of this report. 

 
2.3  That Cabinet delegates authority to the Director of Planning and Regeneration to 

approve the precise terms of the leases (and any necessary ancillary documents) 
to give effect to the above. 

 
3.  Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1. The unregistered freehold interest in the Police Station and Court Complex at 

Campbell Square, Upper Mounts, Northampton belonged to Northampton Borough 
Council. Under the terms of an agreement granted in 1972 by the then County 
Borough of Northampton, Northamptonshire Police Authority (NPA) occupy parts of 
the premises, including adjacent enclosed car parking area, on a rent free basis. 
The agreement permits them to occupy in perpetuity until they cease to use 
specified parts of the property for Police purposes – whereupon they must give 
those premises back to this Council. The Magistrates Court occupies the basement, 
first and second floors of the building and their staff and magistrates use certain car 
parking spaces in the adjacent car park. There is no formal agreement that governs 
their existing use and occupation of this property. There are existing rights, across 
neighbouring land owned by Northamptonshire County Council, to provide access 
for vehicles bringing persons in custody to the Court. 

 
3.1.2 In 2003 the Courts Act was passed with the intent that Magistrates Courts should 

be owned and controlled by Central Government. A Property Transfer Scheme was 
devised by Her Majesty’s Courts Service, (HMCS), to give legal effect to this 
intention. This included the grant of long leases of Magistrates Courts – to fuse the 
ownership and administration of court buildings. That Property Transfer Scheme 
was challenged by another local authority in the High Court and was held to be 
unlawful. 

 
3.1.3 Following a long period of reflection after this judgement, HMCS approached this 

Council and others seeking consensual agreements to the transfer/lease of Court 
accommodation in various locations. In the event that agreement could not be 
reached, they had made clear that a new Property Transfer Scheme would be 
devised to achieve the same ends by compulsory means. 

 
3.1.4 Discussions and negotiations were conducted between officers of this Council, 

HMCS and NPA concerning the existing arrangements that exist between the 
Council and the Police and those between the NPA and HMCS regarding the 
property at Campbell Square. At present, the NPA look after almost all aspects of 
the running of the building and recover certain cost contributions from HMCS. This 
Council presently have no existing liabilities in relation to the property. 

 

Page39



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 3

3.1.5 The Council reached agreement with HMCS in 2007 to grant to them a 999 years 
lease at a peppercorn rental of those parts of the property utilised by them. The 
objectives of Council officers in these discussions were to protect the reversionary 
value of the Council’s interest in the land, whilst at the same time limiting, as far as 
possible, any exposure to landlord’s liabilities under any proposed lease. 

 
3.1.6   Prior to the grant of the proposed long lease being brought to Cabinet in late 2007 

for approval, a dispute as to ownership of the freehold was then raised by 
Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) and by the NPA. It was suggested that by 
operation of law following local government re-organisation in the 1970’s, the 
freehold interest should have passed to NCC at that time. In light of this claim, 
HMCS were not willing to proceed with taking a long lease, since this would cause 
registration problems with the Land Registry. 

 
3.1.7  Not withstanding various communications between this Council, NCC, NPA and 

HMCS’ representatives over a lengthy period between 2007 to 2010, this dispute 
remained outstanding. Pursuant to a new Courts Act Property Transfer scheme, 
CLG on behalf of HMCS did therefore complete the acquisition of the ‘flying 
freehold’ of the parts they occupy. Nevertheless, there remained a need to resolve 
the practical and documentary position governing the relationship between HMCS 
and NPA as occupiers and between this Council and those parties. 

 
3.1.8 Following further round table discussions in 2010 and 2011, NCC and NPA agreed 

to withdraw their claims concerning the freehold ownership, to facilitate a practical 
resolution. The Courts Service is similarly willing to co-operate to give effect to this 
comprehensive solution. This would involve the transfer of the “flying freehold” back 
to this Council by way of confirmatory transfer, with NPA and NCC formally waiving 
any claims too. It would enable this Council to formally register itself as the 
‘undisputed’ freehold owner of the entire site. In return for this, the Council would 
grant two leases, as set out below. 

 
3.1.9 Under the basis now provisionally agreed, this Council would grant a 999 years 

lease to CLG of all that property utilised by the Courts Service at a peppercorn rent 
(reflecting that they already have a flying freehold). Similarly, this Council would 
grant a 999 years lease to the NPA of the parts used by the Police, also at no rental 
(reflecting the terms of the existing 1972 Agreement referred to at 3.1.1). Under 
those leases, this Council would accept repairing and other liabilities in respect of 
the common and exterior parts of the building. However, simultaneously this 
Council would enter into a tripartite agreement with CLG and NPA. All parties would 
mutually agree that whilst NPA’s lease continues, NPA would perform the 
obligations of landlord under both leases. CLG would bind itself to pay contributions 
to NPA (otherwise due under the lease to this Council), whilst NPA continue to 
perform the landlord’s role upon behalf of the Council. 

 
3.1.10 The leases would though differ in important respects. The lease to NPA would 

determine in the event that the NPA no longer utilised the property in the delivery of 
Police services and ancillary activities. In those circumstances this Council would 
get back control of those parts of the property at no cost. However, this would be 
subject to the right of CLG to choose to surrender existing cell accommodation 
within its lease and “swap” that for alternative cell accommodation on a different 
floor (i.e. presently police controlled). This option would be subject to a caveat, that 

Page40



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 4

all parts that would then be vacant must be fully accessible and practically available 
to let to a third party by this Council. 

 
3.1.11 In contrast to NPA, if CLG wished to cease use of the premises and to assign their 

lease, the Council would have a pre-emption right to acquire the CLG interest but 
only at its market value at that time. This reflects the commercial strength of the 
HMCS by virtue of the Courts Act 2003. 

 
3.1.12 In the event that one tenant decided to determine their lease, this Council would 

then be directly liable to perform the landlord’s obligations under the remaining 
lease. However, that liability could be mitigated at that point by this Council being 
able to let the vacated part to a third party, to generate rent and service charge 
contributions. 

 
3.1.13 In order to facilitate the continued practical operation of the property as existing, it  

will be necessary for the parties to the leases to enter into a separate Deed of 
Grant with NCC. This is to permit custody vehicles on behalf of the Courts Service/ 
Police crossing adjoining NCC (Fire Station) owned land to deliver prisoners to the 
Van Dock at the side of the Police Station/ Magistrates Court complex. 

 
 
3.2 Choices (Options) 
 
3.2.1 In light of the statutory position (Courts Act 2003), the principal concern is to agree 

a methodology by consent that will (a) allow the Council to retain all of its freehold 
interest in the property and thus the inherent value that might ultimately be 
realisable from that ownership and (b) that reduces the risk of exposure of the 
Council to costs arising from landlord’s liabilities. The above option achieves this 
objective in a comprehensive and properly structured way. 

 
3.2.2 The Council could, alternatively, choose to (a) accept the existing position of a 

‘flying freehold’ in respect of part of the property in favour of the Courts Service and 
(b) rely upon the existing 1972 documentation regulating the Police occupation and 
management of the property. This would mean that the freehold ownership of the 
property would be permanently fragmented, limiting this Council’s scope to realise 
long term value out of its ownership of the property. It would also rely upon the 
HMCS, NPA and NCC agreeing to co-operate on a day-to-day basis over a number 
of practical matters. Given the history of lengthy communications, claims made and 
legal opinions taken by all parties, this ‘default’ resolution is unlikely to be deemed 
satisfactory by one or more of the relevant parties. 

 
4.  Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1     Policy 
 
4.1     There are none.  
 
4.2     Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 Capital: The Council’s freehold ownership of this property would be registered for 

the first time, giving certainty and a stronger position from which to potentially 
generate capital value in the long term. 

Page41



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 5

 
4.2.2 Revenue: The building generates no income but has no holding costs at present. 

This would continue to be the case for the foreseeable future. It is possible that this 
Council could start to incur landlord’s liabilities at some point in the future, but it 
would then also have the opportunity to generate revenue (rent and service charge) 
from vacated parts of the building. Considerable officer time (Legal and Asset 
Management) has already been expended in reaching a basis for proper 
regularisation of the occupational and ownership position. A limited amount of 
further officer time would be required to conclude the matters. 

 
4.2.3 The risk in proceeding, as recommended, is limited to that of this Council potentially 

not being able to generate sufficient income in the future to cover potential landlord 
liabilities – if one of the tenants chooses to determine their lease. The risk in not 
proceeding is that the Council will not adequately protect its long-term interests and 
that it will lose a ‘one off’ opportunity to register the freehold of the entire property in 
its name. 

 
4.3 Legal 
 
4.3.1   The pertinent legal issues are dealt with in the body of this report. 
 
4.4 Equality 
  

4.4.1 There are none. The actual use of the land and property will not change at all. The 
proposed grant of the leases of the property would regularise the existing position 
and would not disadvantage any section of the population disproportionately. 

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Given the nature of the transactions proposed which have no impact on the existing 

day-to-day operations of the Police Station and of the Magistrates Court, it is not 
considered relevant in this instance to take the views of Ward Councillors. 

 
4.5.2 In the course of dealing with this matter there has been extensive liaison with 

HMCS, NPA and NCC.  
 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The regularisation and registration of ownership and completion of comprehensive 

occupational documentation relating to this building protects the long-term financial 
interests of the Council. This helps sustain effective and prudent financial 
management within this Council (Corporate Priority 8). 

  
4.7  Other Implications 
 

4.7.1  There are none specifically.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page42



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11 6

 

5.   Background Papers 

 
5.1       The Courts Act 2003 
5.2       Asset Management files 
 
 
 
 
Simon Dougall, Corporate Asset Manager, x 8177 
 
Appendix 1 – Plan of Campbell Square Police Station and Magistrates Court and 
associated vehicle parking 

Page43



Page44



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Listed on Forward Plan: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
14 September 2011 
 
NO 
 
YES 
 
YES 
 
NO 
 
Management Board 
 
Cllr A Bottwood/Cllr D Palethorpe 
 
N/A 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 This report presents the Council’s key financial and performance exceptions for the year 

to date. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet note the contents of the report and recommends actions to be taken, if 

any, to address the issues arising. 

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 The purpose of this report is to assist Cabinet in monitoring the progress against the 
delivery of the Corporate Plan priorities within the agreed capital and revenue budgets 
for general fund and HRA by highlighting the key exceptions and identifying any 
emerging issues as notified by service managers. 

3.1.2 It is important that the savings built into the budget are achieved in order to minimise the 
impact on the Council’s general reserves and the budget for future years.  Should any of 

Report Title 
 

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT TO THE END 
OF JULY 2011 

Appendices 
 

1 

Agenda Item 10

Page45



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

the savings be unachievable Management Board and Heads of Service are responsible 
for identifying and undertaking appropriate management action to deliver alternative 
savings or income. 

3.1.3 The report takes into consideration the progress of key projects being delivered across 
the Council, achievement against performance indicators and financial/resource 
information. 

3.1.4 Portfolio holders receive detailed information on all the measures monitoring the 
Corporate Plan within their portfolios. 

 
3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 Performance Exceptions on Corporate Plan Priorities  

This section of the report brings to the attention of Cabinet those measures that are under ( ) 

or over ( ) performing by corporate priority against their profiled monthly targets. Appendix 1 
provides further detail of the issues and actions being taken by service areas. 
 
This report does not include performance data for the Leisure Trust and the Enterprise 
Managed Services (EMS) LTD contract delivering services including household waste and 
recycling, street cleaning, parks, cemeteries and grounds maintenance. Data for reporting by 
the Leisure Trust will be considered and approved by the Trust Board in September, therefore 
exception reporting will commence next quarter. Client monitoring and reporting processes are 
being finalised and exception reporting will commence next quarter for performance measures 
relating to services covered by the EMS contract. 
 
Theme 1 - You 
 

Measure 
Performance 

status 
Actual 
(YTD) 

Target 
(YTD) 

Portfolio 
Page ref. for 
further detail 

HI 36 Number of affordable homes 
delivered 

 

 0 10 Housing 
Appendix 1 
page 2 

Profiled target not achieved this quarter, although it is anticipated that the annual target  
will still be achieved. 

HI 07 Number of households living in 
temporary accommodation 

 

 33 45 Housing 
Appendix 1 
page 2 

Increasing number of households in temporary accommodation, but below profiled targets.  

HI 09 Homeless households for whom 
casework advice resolved their 
situation 

 

 790 619 Housing 
Appendix 1 
page 2 

Performance higher than the profiled target for the fourth consecutive month. 

RB 02 Speed of processing: Average 
time for processing new claims 

 

 
20 
days 

22.25 
days 

Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 2 

New benefit claim processing times being maintained below monthly profiled targets  
and improving month on month. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page46



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

Theme 2 – Your Town 
 

Measure 
Performance 

status 
Actual 
(YTD) 

Target 
(YTD) 

Portfolio 
Page ref. for 
further detail 

CH 04 Visits to museums in person 
per 1,000 population 

 

 221.62 255.14 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled targets not achieved for the last three months. 

NI 157a Percentage of small scale 
major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

 66.67% 75% 
Planning & 
environment 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled target for the month not achieved. 

TCO 02 Number of events delivered in 
partnership: parks and open space  1 2 

Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled target for the month not achieved. 

TCO 05 Percentage increase in 
Market Square footfall compared to 
2010-11 

 -6.04% 2% 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled target for the month not achieved. 

TCO 05 Market Square footfall   1.22m 1.34m 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled target for the month not achieved. 

TCO 01 Number of events delivered in 
partnership: Town Centre  3 2 

Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 3 

Profiled target achieved. 

 

Theme 3 – Your Council 
 

Measure 
Performance 

status 
Actual 
(YTD) 

Target 
(YTD) 

Portfolio 
Page ref. for 
further detail 

BV 12 The number of working days / 
shifts lost to sickness absence 

 

 3.54 3 Leader 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

BV 12r The number of working days / 
shifts lost to sickness absence for 
rolling 12 month period 

 

 12.14 9 Leader 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Monthly improvement, but profiled target not achieved. 

CS 05 Percentage of customers 
satisfied with their contact experience 

 

 84.67% 90% 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 4 

Target not achieved for the last two months. 

CS 13 Percentage of all calls 
answered 

 

 78.09% 95% 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 4 

Profiled target not achieved over the last four months. 

CS 14 One-stop-shop: Percentage of 
all customers waiting less than 15 
minutes 

 75.01% 90% 
Community 
engagement 

Appendix 1 
page 4 

Profiled target not achieved. 

Page47



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

 

Measure 
Performance 

status 
Actual 
(YTD) 

Target 
(YTD) 

Portfolio 
Page ref. for 

further 
detail 

PP 05 Percentage change in 12 
months electric consumption 
compared to previous year 

 

 -4.5% -5% Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Improvement on previous year’s performance, but profiled target not achieved. 

RB 06 Percentage of Council Tax 
collected 

 

 38.88% 39.4% Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Profiled target not achieved. 

FIN27 NBC procurement savings 
for the year against costs of NBC 
procurement 

 

 £166,865 £123,333 Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Performance better than profiled target. 

RB 04 Percentage of non-domestic 
rates due for the year, which have 
been received 

 

 41.4% 41.13% Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Profiled target achieved. 

RB 07 Total percentage of debt 
outstanding, not in recovery and 
overdue 

 

 6.53% 9.4% Finance 
Appendix 1 
page 4 

Profiled targets achieved for the fourth consecutive month. 

 

3.2.2 Key Financial Indicators Exceptions 

Target of £0k means that the target is to deliver the budget 

Ref Dashboard Indicator Description Latest Position Target RAG 

2 Total GF Revenue Controllable Budget Under Spend £178k £0 B 

3. Total HRA Revenue Controllable 
Budget  

Under Spend £159k £0 B 

5. Debt Financing Budget Under Spend £347k £0 B 

 

3.2.3 General Fund and HRA Revenue Budget Issues 

1. Number of Service Areas Materially Overspending 

3.2.4 None of the 20 services with general fund budgets are reporting material variations. 

2. Total General Fund Revenue Controllable Budget 

3.2.5 The following table explains the main under and overspends on the General Fund. 

Service Area £,000 

Neighbourhood Environmental Services 32 

Pension Fund Strain -147 

Housing General Fund -63 

Debt Financing -347 

Total Forecast Under/Overspend - 525 

Page48



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

3.2.6 Neighbourhood & Environmental Services (Green) managers are reporting a 
forecast overspend of £32k after management action, due to income from NCC for 
weed spraying and grass cutting on verges etc reducing, the impact on the Council 
being £15k. £17k overspend is due to the production of bin collection timetables as the 
contract start date was delayed. 

3.2.7 Finance (Blue) managers are reporting an under spend of £147k.  This is mainly due to 
prior year pension strain costs being paid up front in previous years, instead of 
spreading over 3 years as previously expected. 

3.2.8 Housing General Fund (Green) managers are reporting a forecast underspend of 
£63k mainly arising from employee savings through restructuring. 

3.2.9 The Debt Financing (Blue) manager is forecasting an underspend of £347k.  This is 
due to an over achievement of investment income as a result of higher balances during 
the year due mainly to capital slippage, so has no impact for 2012/13. 

3. Total HRA Revenue Controllable Budget (Blue) 

3.2.10 Managers are currently reporting an under spend of £159k on the HRA, which is mainly 
due to savings on vacant posts. 

4. 2010/11 GF Savings and Efficiency Targets 

3.2.11 Managers are currently forecasting these savings targets as being on target for 
2011/12.  

3.2.12 Capital Programme Budgets 

General Fund 

3.2.13 Managers are currently forecasting the General Fund capital programme as being on 
track with no slippage. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

3.2.14 Managers are currently forecasting the HRA capital programme as being on track with 
no slippage. 

3.2.15 Data Quality 

3.2.16 The Council has processes in place to ensure that the data and information it provides 
to support management decision making is as reliable as possible.  The Council has a 
strategy to improve data quality and service areas are working to achieve the objectives 
within it.  This is closely linked to the Council’s risk assessment processes and is 
monitored each month as part of the Council’s Performance Management Framework. 

3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 Cabinet is asked to note the reported position. 

 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 The Council agreed a balanced budget for the Capital Programme and Revenue 
budgets for HRA and General Fund in February 2011.  The monitoring of delivery of the 
budget is through the budget monitoring framework. 

Page49



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/06/09/11  

4.1.2 Corporate measures are monitored regularly to track progress towards delivering our 
priorities, as detailed in the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Service areas annually develop 
objectives, measures and targets to ensure the delivery of the Corporate Plan through 
the service planning process. The monitoring of progress is through the Performance 
Management Framework. 

4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 This report informs the Cabinet of the forecast outturn positions for capital and revenue, 
HRA and General Fund as at the end the period.  It also highlights the key risks 
identified to date in delivering those budgets and where performance measures are 
significantly over or under performing. 

4.2.2 There will be an ongoing impact in future years of not achieving the savings within the 
2011/12 budget, particularly where services move outside the direct control of NBC. 

4.2.3 All objectives, measures and actions within the Service Plans are risked accessed and 
challenged before final approval. The challenge process includes the agreement of 
performance targets and the capacity / ability to deliver the plans with appropriate 
resource set aside to do so. 

4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 Heads of Service and Budget Managers and Management Board are consulted as part 
of the budget and performance monitoring process on a monthly basis. 

4.5.2 Performance data (financial and non financial) is published on the NBC website. 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Performance monitoring (financial and non financial) by exception and using it to 
improve performance is good practice in terms of efficient and effective management.  It 
focuses on the key areas and therefore contributes directly to the priorities of sustaining 
“effective and prudent financial management” and being “an agile transparent 
organisation with good governance”. 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 There are no other implications arising from this report. 

 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Cabinet and Council Budget and Capital Programme Reports February 2011. 

5.2 Finance Monitoring Dashboard to the end of May 2011 report to Cabinet 

 
 

Dale Robertson, Head of Performance and Change, 01604 837110 
Isabell Procter, Director of Finance and Support, 01604 838757 

Management Board, C/o David Kennedy, Chief Executive, 01604 837726 
 

Page50



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

P
a

g
e

 2

P
a

g
e

 3

P
a

g
e

 4
 

Y
o

u

Y
o

u
r 

T
o

w
n

Y
o

u
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
4

Page51



Y
O

U
: 

R
E
D

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 2

0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

3
6
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 

d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 (

N
I 

1
5
5
)(

Q
)

0
-

-
-

1
0

1
0
0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

In
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

e
ri
o
d
 e

n
d
e
d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
. 

A
ll
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ra
n
t 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 h

a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 a

 k
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
n
 n

e
w

 b
u
il
d
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l.
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

n
e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

il
l 
n
o
t 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
la

te
r 

in
 t

h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

1
0
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
 w

e
re

 s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0
1
1
, 

th
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 

in
tr

in
s
ic

a
ll
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

u
il
d
 p

e
ri

o
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
v
in

g
 v

e
ry

 s
lo

w
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t.

 O
n
ly

 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 3
 a

n
d
 4

w
il
l 
w

e
 s

e
e
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
. 

It
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

Y
O

U
: 

B
L
U

E
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 2

0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
7
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

N
I1

5
6
) 

(M
)

3
3

-
-

-
4
5

7
5

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
3
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
4
5
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 w
il
l 
re

d
u
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 a

s
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c

lo
s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 V

o
id

s
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 l
e
t 

a
g
a
in

 a
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 H
I 

0
9
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
d
v
ic

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 (

M
)

7
9
0

-
-

-
6
1
9

2
,0

0
0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

2
2
4
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 h
e
lp

e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

, 
to

ta
ll
in

g
 7

9
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

. 
W

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 1

0
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 f

ig
u
re

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
2
 S

p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 

A
v
e
.t

im
e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s
 (

M
)

2
0
.0

0
-

-
-

2
2
.2

5
1
9
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

M
o
n
th

ly
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
ra

ll
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
 m

o
n
th

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

Ju
ly

 w
a
s
 1

4
.7

7
 

d
a
y
s
 a

n
d
 2

0
 d

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

. 

E
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
o

r 
o

v
e
r

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n

 o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 t

a
rg

e
t

O
u

ts
id

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n
c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

s

K
e

y

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

W
o

rs
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

B
e
tt

e
r

N
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

i g
h

: 
W

o
rs

e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

ig
h

: 
B

e
tt
e

r

N
o
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le

N
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le

Y
O

U
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 y

o
u

 w
h

e
n

 y
o
u

 n
e

e
d
 i
t

E
n
s
u

ri
n
g

 h
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

E
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
, 

a
c
ti
v
e

, 
g

re
e

n
 l
iv

in
g

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
4

Page52



Y
O

U
R
 T

O
W

N
: 

R
E
D

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 

2
0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

 
P
ro

fi
le

d
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 C
H

0
4
 V

is
it
s
 t

o
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

M
)

2
2
1
.6

2
-

-
-

2
5
5
.1

4
5
1
4
.0

2

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

Ju
ly

: 
V
is

it
s
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t

o
 A

b
in

g
to

n
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 a
re

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 2

0
0
9
 &

 2
0
1
0
. 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 &
 A

rt
 G

a
ll
e
ry

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1
0
. 

W
e
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 s
o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 t

h
is

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

a
u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 y
e
a
r.

 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 N
I1

5
7
a
 S

M
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
's

m
a
ll
 s

c
a
le

' 
m

a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 

w
e
e
k
s
 (

M
)

6
6
.6

7
-

-
-

7
5
.0

0
7
5
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

W
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

h
re

e
 s

m
a
ll
 s

c
a
le

 m
a
jo

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 J

u
ly

, 
tw

o
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
2
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

: 
p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 (

Q
)

1
.0

0
-

-
-

2
.0

0
6
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

O
n
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
rn

iv
a
l 
a
t 

D
e
la

p
re

 A
b
b
e
y
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
. 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
 

fo
o
tf

a
ll
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 (

Q
)

-7
.0

5
-

-
-

2
.0

0
2
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l,
 M

a
y
 a

n
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
, 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 3

9
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
T
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 t

h
e
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

, 
a
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
im

it
e
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
1
6
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 N

B
C
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

a
rt

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

, 
R
a
c
e
 F

o
r 

L
if
e
,

E
lt
o
n
 J

o
h
n
 C

o
n
c
e
rt

 a
n
d
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 C

a
rn

iv
a
l.
 T

h
e
 E

v
e
n
ts

 T
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 t

o
 p

la
y
 m

o
re

 o
f 
a
 f

a
c
il
it
a
ti
n
g
 r

o
le

 t
h
a
n
 a

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

in
g
 r

o
le

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t

w
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 

T
h
e
 f
o
o
tf

a
ll
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 M

u
s
ic

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 d

o
w

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

a
d
 w

e
a
th

e
r.

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 t

h
e
 '
P
ri
d
e
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
' 

w
a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 f
o
o
tf

a
ll
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

to
 l
a
s
t.

 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
5
n
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

 f
o
o
tf

a
ll
 (

Q
)

1
,2

2
4
,8

5
8
..

..
-

-
-

1
,3

4
4
,1

5
6
.0

0
4
,9

1
4
,8

2
0
.9

6

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

a
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

Y
O

U
R
 T

O
W

N
: 

B
L
U

E
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 

2
0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

 

P
ro

fi
le

d
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 
T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 T
C
O

0
1
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

: 
T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

Q
)

3
.0

0
-

-
-

2
.0

0
6
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

In
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 t

h
re

e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
u
ts

, 
M

u
s
ic

 C
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 A

rm
e
d
 F

o
rc

e
s
. 

E
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
o

r 
o

v
e
r

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n

 o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 t

a
rg

e
t

O
u

ts
id

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n
c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

s

K
e

y

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

W
o

rs
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

B
e
tt

e
r

N
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

i g
h

: 
W

o
rs

e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

ig
h

: 
B

e
tt
e

r

N
o
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le

N
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le

H
e

lp
in

g
 c

re
a
te

  
a

 c
le

a
n

, 
g

re
e

n
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n

D
e

liv
e

ri
n
g

 i
n

v
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

jo
y
a

b
le

 o
p

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e

s

D
ri

v
in

g
 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

t 
a

m
b

it
io

u
s
, 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
N

o
rt

h
a

m
p
to

n

Y
O

U
R

 T
O

W
N

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
4

Page53



Y
O

U
R
 C

O
U

N
C
IL

: 
R
E
D

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 2

0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is
B
e
tt

e
r

 B
V
0
1
2
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 /

 
s
h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 

to
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

M
)

3
.5

4
-

-
-

3
.0

0
9
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

B
V
1
2
 r

o
ll
in

g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 f
ig

u
re

. 

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 B
V
0
1
2
_
1
2
r 

A
v
e
. 

n
o
. 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 

to
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

ro
ll
in

g
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 (

M
)

1
2
.1

4
-

-
-

9
.0

0
9
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 f

ig
u
re

 o
f 
0
.8

1
 F

T
E
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 a

n
d
 J

u
ly

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
0
.1

6
 F

T
E
 d

a
y
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 M

a
y
 a

t 
0
.9

7
 F

T
E
 d

a
y
s
. 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
, 

th
e
 t

o
p
 

fi
v
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 w

e
re

 M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 (

a
n
x
ie

ty
/s

tr
e
s
s
);

 M
u
s
c
u
lo

s
k
e
ta

l 
(b

a
c
k
);

 S
u
rg

e
ry

 (
o
rt

h
o
p
a
e
d
ic

);
 f
o
ll
o
w

e
d
 b

y
 F

lu
-l

ik
e
 s

y
m

p
to

m
s
; 

a
n
d
 

C
o
u
g
h
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
ld

. 
M

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 (

a
n
x
ie

ty
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
s
s
) 

h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

re
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 M

a
y
, 

Ju
n
e
 a

n
d
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

4
0
4
 

d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

(i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
).

 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 C
S
0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 (

M
)

8
4
.6

7
-

-
-

9
0
.0

0
9
0
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

Ju
ly

 w
a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
7
1
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 8

4
.6

7
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

9
0
%

. 
F
ig

u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

to
 a

 n
e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

td
 (

E
M

S
).

 T
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

D
a
v
e
n
tr

y
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 E

M
S
 b

e
g
a
n
 o

n
 M

o
n
d
a
y
 6

 J
u
n
e
. 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 C
S
1
3
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 c

a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 (

M
)

7
8
.0

9
-

-
-

9
5
.0

0
9
5
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 w
a
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
7
4
.8

%
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 7

8
.0

9
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
9
5
%

. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

a
ll
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o

a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r,

 E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

T
D

 f
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
e
m

a
n
d
 s

ti
ll
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 C
S
1
4
 O

n
e
-S

to
p
 s

h
o
p
: 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 

c
u
s
t.

 w
a
it
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 1

5
 m

in
s
 (

M
)

7
5
.0

1
-

-
-

9
0
.0

0
9
0
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

V
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

ry
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

ro
p
-i

n
s
, 

h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

S
S
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fl
o
o
r 

w
a
lk

e
rs

 u
ti
li
s
in

g
 h

a
n
d
 h

e
ld

 t
a
b
le

ts
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 t

ry
 t

o
 m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 P
P
0
5
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

 
E
L
E
C
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
r 

(M
)

-4
.5

-
-

-
-5

.0
-5

.0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
t 

is
 0

.5
%

 p
o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 

(M
)

3
8
.8

8
-

-
-

3
9
.4

0
9
7
.5

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 c

a
s
h
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

o
in

t 
la

s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 

Y
O

U
R
 C

O
U

N
C
IL

: 
B
L
U

E
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

 I
D

 &
 N

a
m

e
Ju

l 
1
1

O
c
t 

1
1

D
e
c
 1

1
M

a
r 

1
2

L
a
te

s
t 

Y
T
D

 A
u
g
 2

0
1
1

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Y
T
D

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 

T
a
rg

e
t

D
O

T
 v

's
 

s
a
m

e
 t

im
e
 

la
s
t 

y
r

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 F
IN

2
7
 N

B
C
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

N
B
C
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

(M
)

£
1
6
6
,8

6
5

-
-

-
£
1
2
3
,3

3
3

£
3
7
0
,0

0
0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 H

R
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

Ju
ly

 s
o
 t

h
e
y
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
 

B
ig

g
e
r 

is
 B

e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
4
 (

p
re

v
 B

V
0
1
0
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 (

M
)

4
1
.4

0
-

-
-

4
1
.1

3
9
9
.6

5

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 i
s
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

ly
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Ju

ly
. 

T
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

le
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

s
u
m

s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

in
 

th
e
 M

a
g
is

tr
a
te

s
's

 C
o
u
rt

 h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
fl
u
x
 i
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

. 

S
m

a
ll
e
r 

is

B
e
tt

e
r

 R
B
0
7
 T

o
ta

l 
%

 o
f 
d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
, 

n
o
t 

in
 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
rd

u
e
 (

M
)

6
.5

3
-

-
-

9
.4

0
8
.0

0

a
)
 P

e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
d
e
b
t 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
9
.4

%
 a

t 
6
.5

3
%

. 
W

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 
e
a
c
h
 a

re
a
 o

f 

d
e
b
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

E
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
o

r 
o

v
e
r

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

O
n

 o
r 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 t

a
rg

e
t

O
u

ts
id

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
le

ra
n
c
e

W
it
h

in
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

s

K
e

y

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

W
o

rs
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

w
: 

B
e
tt

e
r

N
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

i g
h

: 
W

o
rs

e

G
o

o
d
 t

o
 b

e
 H

ig
h

: 
B

e
tt
e

r

N
o
 d

a
ta

 o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le

N
o
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a

ila
b

le

Y
O

U
R

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

B
e
in

g
 a

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
iv

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 q
u

a
lit

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
a
ti
s
fy

in
g

 o
u

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e
rs

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
4

Page54


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Minutes of West Northants Joint Strategic Planning Committee 31st January 2011
	7 Northampton Skatepark Location
	Appendix A
	Skate Park Appendix

	8 Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone
	9 Land and Buildings at Campbell Square - property ownership and occupation
	Campbell Square Appendix

	10 Finance & Performance - Report to end of July 2011
	Finance and PerformanceAppendix


